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Satis Gelirleri 17 206.457.580 251.703.077
Satislarin Maliyeti (-) 17 (207.482.073) (239.294.885)
BRUT KAR/ZARAR (1.024.493) 12.408.192
Pazarlama, Satis ve Dagitim Giderleri (-) 18 (7.265.292) (9.199.935)
Genel Yonetim Giderleri (-) 18 (13.124.559) (10.804.777)
Diger Faaliyet Gelirleri 19 4.044.205 2.541.498
Diger Faaliyet Giderleri (-) 19 (370.930) (18.098)
FAALIYET KARI/ZARARI (17.741.069) (5.073.120)
Finansal Gelirler 20 17.782.550 8.045.264
Finansal Giderler () 21 (48.061.134) (14.234.262)
SURDURULEN FAALIYETLER VERGI (48.019.653) (11.262.118)
ONCESI KARI/ZARARI
Sirdiirlen Faaliyetler Vergi Gelir/Gideri

- Dénem Vergi Gelir/Gideri

- Ertelenmis Vergi Gelir/Gideri 22 4.633.349 12.313.741
SURDURULEN FAALIYETLER (43.386.304) 1.051.623
DONEM KARI/ZARARI
DONEM KARI/ZARARI (43.386.304) 1.051.623
Hisse Basina Kazang 23 (0,004339) 0,00013

ilisikteki dipnotlar mali tablolarin ayrilmaz parcasini olusturur.

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
Notes 01 January 08 - 01 January 07 -
31 December 08 31 December 07
CONTINUED OPERATIONS
Revenue 17 206.457.580 251.703.077
Cost of sales (-) 17 (207.482.073) (239.294.885)
GROSS PROFIT / LOSS (1.024.493) 12.408.192
Marketing, sales and distribution expenses (-) 18 (7.265.292) (9.199.935)
General administration expenses (-) 18 (13.124.559) (10.804.777)
Other operating income 19 4.044.205 2.541.498
Other operating expenses (-) 19 (370.930) (18.098)
OPERATING PROFIT / LOSS (17.741.069) (5.073.120)
Finance income 20 17.782.550 8.045.264
Finance expenses (-) 21 (48.061.134) (14.234.262)

CONTINUED OPERATIONS LOSS () (48.019.653) (11.262.118)
BEFORE TAXATION
Continued operations tax income / expense

- Tax income / expense for the period

- Deferred tax income / expense 22 4.633.349 12.313.741
CONTINUED OPERATIONS PROFIT / LOSS (-) (43.386.304) 1.051.623
FOR THE PERIOD
PROFIT / LOSS (-) FOR THE PERIOD (43.386.304) 1.051.623
Earnings per share 23 (0,004339) 0,00013

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikce Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

Kardan

) Sermaye | Hisse Senedi Ayrilan

Odenmis Diizeltmesi Ihrag Kisitlanmis | GegmisYil |  Toplam

Sermaye Farklari Primleri Primleri |Kari / (Zarar) | Ozsermaye
1 Ocak 2007 Bakiyesi 40.000.000 | 22.585.778 5.495.600 1.029.833 |(22.225.334) | 46.885.877
Transferler 60.000.000 261.044 60.261.044
Net donem kari / (zarart) 1.051.623 1.051.623
31 Aralik 2007 Bakiyesi |100.000.000 | 22.585.778 5.756.644 1.029.833 | (21.173.711) | 108.198.544
1 Ocak 2008 Bakiyesi 100.000.000 | 22.585.778 5.756.644 1.029.833 | (21.173.711) | 108.198.544
Net dénem kari / zarari (43.386.304) |(43.386.304)
31 Aralik 2008 Bakiyesi | 100.000.000 | 22.585.778 5.756.644 1.029.833 | (64.560.015) | 64.812.240

{lisikteki dipnotlar mali tablolarin ayrilmaz parcasini olusturur.

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

OPERATIONS

Restricted Inflation

Premiumin | reserves | adjustment Total
Paid-in excessof | assorted of paid-in |Accumulated |shareholders'

capital par from profit | capital losses equity
Balance as of 1 January 2007 40.000.000 | 22.585.778 | 5.495.600 | 1.029.833 |(22.225.334)| 46.885.877
Additions 60.000.000 261.044 60.261.044
Net profit / loss (-) for the period 1.051.623| 1.051.623
Balance as of 31 December 2007 | 100.000.000 | 22.585.778 | 5.756.644 | 1.029.833 |(21.173.711) | 108.198.544
Balance as of 1 January 2008 100.000.000 | 22.585.778 | 5.756.644 | 1.029.833 |(21.173.711) | 108.198.544
Net profit / loss (-) for the period (43.386.304) | (43.386.304)
Balance as of 31 December 2008 | 100.000.000 | 22.585.778 | 5.756.644 | 1.029.833 |(64.560.015)| 64.812.240

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHINDE SONA EREN YILA AIT NAKIT AKIM TABLOSU

(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikge Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

Note

01 January 08

31 December 08

01 January 07

31 December 07

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

01 Ocak 08 01 Ocak 07

Not | 31Aralik 08 31 Aralik 07
ISLETME FAALIYETLERINE iLISKIN NAKIT AKIMLARI:
Net dénem kari / zarari (-) (43.386.304) 1.051.623
Déonem zararini (-) isletme faaliyetlerinde kullanilan (-) nakit akimina
getirmek icin yapilan diizeltmeler:
Amortisman giderleri 10 12.173.054 11.564.783
itfa giderleri 11 1.791.017 1.662.307
Kidem tazminati karsiligi gideri 14 1.059.021 835.282
Maddi/Maddi olmayan duran varlik satis kari 19 (2.548.613) (2.070.866)
Finansman giderleri 21 37.108.000 9.033.513
Faiz geliri (1.726.461) (78.722)
Ertelenmis vergi geliri (4.633.349) (12.313.741)
isletme sermayesindeki degisim oncesi faaliyetlerde
kullanilan (-) nakit akim (163.635) 9.684.179
isletme sermayesinde gerceklesen degisimler
Ticari alacaklardaki azalis / (artis) (10.135.229) (32.605.494)
Stoklardaki (artis) (132.852.274) (5.376.370)
iliskili taraflardan alacaklardaki azalis 24.413 39.802
Diger alacaklar, verilen avanslar ve donen varliklardaki (artis) (19.999.095) 244.091
Ticari borclardaki artis / (azalis) 18.973.564 25.246.763
iliskili taraflardan borclardaki artis / (azalis) 11.649.040 1.084.243
iliskili taraflara diger borclardaki artis / (azalis) 2.015.576
Alinan avanslardaki artis / (azalis) 349.548 (1.041.946)
Diger borclar ve gider tahakkuklarindaki artis / (azalis) 7.925.235 2.966.108
Finansal kiralama islemlerinden borglardaki (azalis) (43.656)
Faaliyetlerde kullanilan (-) nakit (122.212.857) 197.720
Odenen faiz gideri (24.484.314) (10.099.920)
Odenen kidem tazminati 14 (928.354) (368.567)
isletme faaliyetlerinde kullanilan (-) nakit akimi (147.625.525) | (10.270.767)

Net loss (-) for the period (43.386.304) 1.051.623
Adjustments to reconcile net loss (-) for the period to net cash used in

operating activities:

Depreciation expense 10 12.173.054 11.564.783
Amortization expense 11 1.791.017 1.662.307
Retirement pay provision expense 14 1.059.021 835.282
(Gain) on sale of tangible / intangible fixed assets 19 (2.548.613) (2.070.866)
Finance costs 21 37.108.000 9.033.513
Interest income (1.726.461) (78.722)
Deferred tax income (4.633.349) (12.313.741)
Cash (used) from operating activities before changes in

working capital (163.635) 9.684.179
Changes in working capital

Decrease / (increase) in trade recevables (10.135.229) (32.605.494)
(Increase) in inventories (132.852.274) (5.376.370)
Decrease in due from related parties 24.413 39.802
(Increase) in other current and non-current assets (19.999.095) 244.091
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 18.973.564 25.246.763
Increase / (decrease) in due to related parties 11.649.040 1.084.243
Increase / (decrease) in other payables to related parties 2.015.576

Increase / (decrease) in advances received 349.548 (1.041.946)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities and accrued expenses 7.925.235 2.966.108
(Decrease) in obligations under finance leases (43.656)
Cash (used in) operating activities (122.212.857) 197.720
Interest paid (24.484.314) (10.099.920)
Retirement pay provision paid 14 (928.354) (368.567)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (147.625.525) (10.270.767)

llisikteki dipnotlar mali tablolarin ayrilmaz parcasini olusturur.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHINDE SONA EREN YILA AIT NAKIT AKIM TABLOSU

(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikgce Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

Note

01 January 08
31 December 08

01 January 07

31 December 07

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

01 Ocak 08 01 Ocak o7

Not | 31Aralik o8 31 Aralik o7
YATIRIM FAALIYETLERINE iLISKIN NAKIT AKIMLARI:
Maddi duran varlik alimlarina iliskin nakit ¢ikislari (25.838.970) (14.036.963)
Maddi olmayan duran varlik alimlarina iliskin nakit cikislari (117.849) (146.840)
Maddi duran varlik satisi nedeniyle elde edilen nakit girisleri 496.079 2.153.911
Maddi olmayan duran varlik satisi nedeniyle elde edilen nakit girisleri 4.031.200
Alinan faiz 213.849 78.722

Payments for property, plant and equipment (25.838.970) (14.036.963)
Payments for intangible assets (117.849) (146.840)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 496.079 2.153.911
Proceeds on disposal of intangible assets 4.031.200

Interest received 213.849 78.722

Yatirim faaliyetlerinde kullanilan nakit akimi

(21.215.691)

(11.951.170)

Net cash (used in) investing activities

(21.215.691)

(11.951.170)

FINANSMAN FAALIYETLERINE iLISKIN NAKIT AKIMLARI:

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

(Geri 6denen) / Alinan krediler 174.706.334 (37.734.710)
Sermaye artisi 60.000.000
Hisse senedi ihrag primindeki degisim 261.044
Finansman faaliyetlerinden elde edilen nakit akim 174.706.334 22.526.334
HAZIR DEGERLERDEKi NET DEGISIiM 5.865.118 304.397
DONEM BASI HAZIR DEGERLER 844.540 540.143
DONEM SONU HAZIR DEGERLER 6.709.658 844.540

Proceeds from / (repayments of) borrowings 174.706.334 | (37.734.710)
Proceeds on issue of equity shares 60.000.000
Increase in premium in excess of par 261.044
Net cash provided by financing activities 174.706.334 22.526.334
NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5.865.118 304.397
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 844.540 540.143
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 6.709.658 844.540

llisikteki dipnotlar mali tablolarin ayrilmaz parcasini olusturur.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.




&
KARSAN Annual Report 2008\/ KARSAN Faaliyet Raporu 2008

(]
F AAL IYET LE KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE FINANSAL TABLOLAR

31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE MALI TABLOLARA iLISKIN DIPNOTLAR

(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikge Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

1. SIRKET'IN ORGANiZASYONU VE FAALIYET KONUSU
isletmenin ticaret iinvani: Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.S. (“Sirket”)
Merkez adresi: Akgalar Sanayi Bolgesi, Akcalar 16225 Niliifer / Bursa

Bagli bulundugu grup: Kiraga Holding A.S.(*)
(*) Kiraga Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticari Yatinmlar A.S.'nin tinvani 14.05.2008 tarihinde yukaridaki sekilde degismistir.

islem gbrdiigii borsa: Istanbul Menkul Kiymetler Borsasi Birinci Ulusal Pazar
Sirket, Tiirkiye'de her nevi oto montaj ve karoseri tesisleri kurmak, kurulmus olanlari satin almak, bunlara istirak etmek, kardseri imali
icin oto ithal etmek, her nevi oto kardseri yapmak ve satmak amaciyla kurulmustur. Sirket'in faaliyet alanlari; ¢esitli otomotiv markalarina

motorlu araglar tiretmek, ithal ve ihrag etmektir. Ayni kapsamda, Otomotiv ana ve yan sanayilerine endiistriyel hizmet vermektir.

Kategorileri itibariyle donem icinde ¢alisan personelin ortalama sayisi asagidaki gibidir:

Donem isci Memur Miidiir Ust diizey Toplam
31 Aralik 2008 727 104 12 5 848
31 Aralik 2007 746 86 11 3 846

Finansal tablolarin onaylanmasi:

Finansal tablolar, yayinlanmak tizere yonetim kurulu tarafindan 12 Mart 2009 tarihinde onaylanmistir. Genel Kurul'un finansal tablolari
degistirme yetkisi bulunmaktadr.

2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR
2.1 Sunuma lliskin Temel Esaslar

Sirket, yasal defterlerini ve kanuni mali tablolarini Tiirk Ticaret Kanunu (“TTK”) ve vergi mevzuatinca belirlenen muhasebe ilkelerine uygun
olarak tutmakta ve hazirlamaktadir.

Sermaye Piyasasi Kurumu (“SPK”), Seri: XI, No: 29 sayili “Sermaye Piyasasinda Finansal Raporlamaya iliskin Esaslar Teblig” (“Seri: XI,
No: 29 sayili Teblig”) ile isletmeler tarafindan diizenlenecek finansal raporlar ile bunlarin hazirlanmasi ve ilgililere sunulmasina iliskin ilke,
usul ve esaslari belirlemektedir. Bu Teblig, 1 Ocak 2008 tarihinden sonra baslayan hesap dénemlerine ait ilk ara finansal tablolardan
gecerli olmak lizere yiriirliige girmistir ve bu Teblig ile birlikte Seri: XI, No: 25 "Sermaye Piyasasinda Muhasebe Standartlari Hakkinda
Teblig" yiiriirliikten kaldinlmistir. Bu teblige istinaden, isletmeler finansal tablolarini Avrupa Birligi tarafindan kabul edilen haliyle
Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlari'na (“UMS/UFRS”)'na gore hazirlamalar gerekmektedir. Ancak Avrupa Birligi tarafindan
kabul edilen UMS/UFRS'nin Uluslararasi Muhasebe Standartlari Kurulu (“UMSK”) tarafindan yayimlananlardan farklari Tiirkiye Muhasebe
Standartlar Kurulu (“TMSK?”) tarafindan ilan edilinceye kadar UMS/UFRS'ler uygulanacaktir. Bu kapsamda, benimsenen standartlara
aykir olmayan, TMSK tarafindan yayimlanan Tiirkiye Muhasebe/Finansal Raporlama Standartlari (“TMS/TFRS”) esas alinacaktir.

Avrupa Birligi tarafindan kabul edilen UMS/UFRS'nin UMSK tarafindan yayimlananlardan farklari TMSK tarafindan ilan edilinceye kadar,
finansal tablolar SPK Seri: XI, No: 29 sayili tebligi cercevesinde UMS/UFRS'ye gore hazirlanmaktadir. ilisikteki finansal tablolar ve dipnotlar,
SPK tarafindan 14 Nisan 2008 tarihli duyuru ile uygulanmasi zorunlu kilinan formatlara uygun olarak sunulmustur. Bu kapsamda gec¢mis
donem finansal tablolarinda bazi siniflamalar yapilmistir.

Finansal tablolar, tarihi maliyet esasina gore hazirlanmaktadir.

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYii VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI O P E RA T I 0 N 5

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Tradename: Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.S. (“The Company”)

Headoffice: Akcalar Sanayi Bélgesi, Akcalar 16225 Niliifer / Bursa

Related Group: Kiraga Holding A.S. (*)

(*) Tradename of Kiraga Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticari Yatirimlar A.S. has been changed as above on 14.05.2008.

Registered Stock Exchange: istanbul Stock Exchange National Market

The Company has been established to establish any kind of vehicle assembly and bodywork facilities, purchasing and/or participating in the
already established facilities, importing vehicles for bodywork manufacturing, and producing and selling any kind of vehicle bodywork in Turkey.
The activities of the Company are to produce, import and export motor vehicles to automotive companies. Moreover, the Company provides

industrial service to automotive companies.

Average employee number employed in the year by category:

Period Blue Collared | White Collared | Manager Key Management Total
31 December 2008 727 104 12 5 848
31 December 2007 746 86 11 3 846

Approval of financial statements:

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 12 March 2009. The General Aseembly is
authorized to make changes on the financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of Presentation

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements (“Statutory Financial Statements”) in
accordance with accounting principles in the Turkish Commercial Code and tax legislation.

The Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) has established principles, procedures and basis on the preparation of financial reports by enterprises
and the representation of the reports with Communiqué No: XI/29 “Communiqué on Capital Market Financial Reporting Standards”. This
Communiqué is applicable for the first interim financial statements to be prepared after 1 January 2008, and with this Communiqué, the
Communiqué No: XI/25 “Communiqué on Capital Market Accounting Standards” has been repealed. In accordance with this Communiqué,
the companies are supposed to prepare their financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IAS/IFRS”) accepted by the European Union. Nevertheless, until the discrepancies between the IAS/IFRS accepted by the European
Union, and the IAS/IFRS declared by IASB are announced by the Turkish Accounting Standards Board (“TASB™), IAS/IFRS will be in use.
Under these circumstances, Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TAS/TFRS”), which are the standards
published by TASB, not contradicting with IAS/IFRS will be predicated on.

Until the differences between the standards accepted by the European Union and the standards issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) are announced by the TASB, financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with IASs/IFRSs under the
CMB's Decree Volume: XI, No: 29. The accompanying financial statements and notes are presented in accordance with the standart format
required by the announcement of the CMB on 14 April 2008. In this scope, some reclassifications are made in the prior year financial
statements.

Financial statements are based on historical cost.

<ﬁ
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31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE FINANSAL TABLOLAR

31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE MALI TABLOLARA iLISKIN DIPNOTLAR

(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikgce Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)
2.1 Sunuma iliskin Temel Esaslar

Kullanilan Para Birimi

Sirket'in finansal tablolari faaliyette bulundugu temel ekonomik cervrede gecerli para birimi (fonksiyonel para birimi) olan TL cinsinden
sunulmustur.

5083 sayili “Tiirkiye Cumhuriyeti Devletinin Para Birimi Hakkinda Kanun” (5083 sayili Kanun) ile Tiirkiye Cumhuriyeti Devleti'nin para
biriminin ismi Yeni Tuirk Lirasi (YTL), alt birimi ise Yeni Kurus (YKR) olarak tanimlanmistir. Diger taraftan Bakanlar Kurulu'nun Yeni Tiirk
Lirasi ve Yeni Kurusta Yer Alan Yeni ibarelerinin Kaldiriimasina ve Uygulama Esaslarina iliskin Bakanlar Kurulu Karar”nin eki Karar ile
Tiirkiye Cumhuriyeti Devleti'nin Para birimi olan YTL ve YKR'de yer alan “Yeni” ibarelerinin 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinden itibaren yiiriirliikten
kaldinlacag hiikme baglanmistir. Bu nedenle ekli finansal tablolar TL cinsinden hazirlanmistir.

Yiiksek Enflasyon Dénemlerinde Mali Tablolarin Diizeltilmesi

SPK'nin 17 Mart 2005 tarihve 11/367 sayili karari uyarinca, Tirkiye'de faaliyette bulunan ve SPK Muhasebe Standartlari'na (UMS/UFRS
uygulamasini benimseyenler dahil) uygun olarak finansal tablo hazirlayan sirketler icin, 1 Ocak 2005 tarihinden itibaren gecerli olmak
lizere enflasyon muhasebesi uygulamasina son verilmistir. Buna istinaden, 1 Ocak 2005 tarihinden itibaren UMSK tarafindan yayimlanmis
29 No'lu “Yiiksek Enflasyonlu Ekonomilerde Finansal Raporlama” Standardi (“UMS/TMS 29”) uygulanmamistir.”

2.2 Muhasebe Politikalarindaki Degisiklikler

Muhasebe politikalarinda yapilan 6nemli degisiklikler geriye doniik olarak uygulanmakta ve 6nceki donem finansal tablolari yeniden
diizenlenmektedir. Sirket, SPK Seri XI No 29 sayili teblige uyumlu olmak agisindan 1 Ocak 2007 tarihinden itibaren muhasebe
politikalarinda gerekli degisiklikleri yapmistir.

2.3 Muhasebe Tahminlerindeki Degisiklikler ve Hatalar

Muhasebe tahminlerindeki degisiklikler, yalnizca bir doneme iliskin ise, degisikligin yapildig cari donemde, gelecek donemlere
iliskin ise, hem degisikligin yapildig1 donemde hem de gelecek donemlerde, ileriye yonelik olarak uygulanir. Sirket'in cari yil icerisinde
muhasebe tahminlerinde 6nemli bir degisikligi olmamistir. Tespit edilen nemli muhasebe hatalari geriye doniik olarak uygulanir
ve onceki donem finansal tablolari yeniden diizenlenir. 31 Aralik 2007 mali tablolarinda yapilan siniflamalarin detayi asagidaki
gibidir:

31 Aralik 2007 tarihli gelir tablosunda “Diger Faaliyetlerden Gider ve Zararlar” igerisinde yer alan 13.234.317 TL tutarindaki ¢calismayan
kisim giderleri, 31 Aralik 2008 tarihli gelir tablosu ile karsilastirmali sunulan finansal tablolarda “Satislarin Maliyeti” kalemi icerisinde
gosterilmistir.

2.4 Netlestirme/Mahsup
Finansal varliklar ve yiikiimliiliikler, yasal olarak netlestirme hakki var olmasi, net olarak 6denmesi veya tahsilinin miimkiin olmasi

veya varligin elde edilmesi ile yuikiimliiliigiin yerine getirilmesinin es zamanli olarak gerceklesebilmesi halinde, bilangoda net
degerleri ile gosterilirler.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont'd)

Currency in Use

The Company's financial statements have been presented in TRY which is the valid currency (functional currency) at the economic
environment in which the Company's primary operations take place.

In accordance with Law No: 5083 “Monetary Unit of the Turkish Republic” (Law No: 5083), the name of the Turkish Republic's monetary
unit and its sub-currency unit was changed to the New Turkish Lira (“YTL”) and the New Turkish Cent (“Ykr”), respectively. However, in
accordance with the additional order of the Council of Ministers in regards to the order on the Removal of the phase “New” in the New
Turkish Lira and the New Turkish Cent and Its Application Principles, the phase “New” used in the Turkish Republic's monetary unit is
removed both from YTLand in Ykr as of 1 January 2009. Therefore, the Company's financial statements are prepared and presented in
TLaccordingly.

Inflation Accounting
CMB, with its resolution numbered 11/367 dated 17 March 2005 declared that companies operating in Turkey which prepare their financial
statements in accordance with CMB Accounting Standards, effective January 1, 2005, will not be subject to the application of inflation

accounting. Consequently, in the accompanying financial statements IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” was
not applied.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies

Significant changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and prior year financial statements are restated. The Company has
made necessary changes to accounting policies starting with 1 January 2007, to comply with the CMB Communiqué XI1/29.

2.3 Changes and Errors in Accounting Estimates

Changes in accounting policies or accounting errors are applied retroactively and the financial statements of the previous periods are
adjusted. If estimated changes in accounting policies are for only one period, changes are applied on the current year but if the estimated
changes effect the following periods, changes are applied both on the current and following years prospectively. Details of the reclassifications
made on 31 December 2007 financial statements are as follows:

Idle capacity expenses amounting to TRY 13.234.317 which were included in “Other expenses and losses” for the year ended 31 December
2008 are classified into “Cost of Goods Sold” in the comparative income statement presented for the year ended 31 December 2008.

2.4 Offsetting:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE FINANSAL TABLOLAR

31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE MALI TABLOLARA iLISKIN DIPNOTLAR

(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikgce Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)
2.5 Yeni ve Revize Edilmis Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlari

Sirket cari donemde Uluslararasi Muhasebe Standartlari Kurulu (UMSK) ve UMSK'nin Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Yorumlari Komitesi
(UFRSYK) tarafindan yayinlanan ve 1 Ocak 2008 tarihinden itibaren gegerli olan yeni ve revize edilmis standartlar ve yorumlardan kendi
faaliyet konusu ile ilgili olanlar uygulamistir.

Asagida yer alan standartlar ile 6nceki standartlara getirilen degisiklikler ve yorumlar 1 Ocak 2008 tarihinde veya s6z konusu tarihten
sonra baslayan mali donemler igin zorunlu oldugu halde Sirket'in faaliyetleri ile ilgili degildir:

o UFRSYK 11, “UFRS 2 - Sirket ve isletmenin Geri Satin Alinan Kendi Hisselerine iliskin islemler”

o UFRSYK 12, “Hizmet imtiyaz Anlasmalar”,

e UFRSYK 14, “UMS 19- Tanimlanmis Fayda Varligi Uzerindeki Sinirlama, Asgari Fonlama Gereklilikleri ve Birbirleriyle Olan Karsilikli
Etkilesimleri”,

o UMS 39, UFRS 7 “Finansal Varliklarin Siniflandinilmasina iliskin Degisiklikler”

Heniiz yiiriirliige girmemis ve Sirket tarafindan erken uygulanmasi benimsenmemis standartlar ile mevcut 6nceki standartlara getirilen
degisiklikler ve yorumlar.

Asagidaki Standartlar ve Yorumlar bu finansal tablolarin onaylanma tarihinde yayinlanmis ancak yiriirliige girmemistir:

e UFRS 8, “Faaliyet Boliimleri” 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

donemleri icin gegerlidir.

UFRYK 13, “Miisteri Baglilik Programlan” 1 Temmuz 2008 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan mali

donemler icin gecerlidir.

UFRYK 15, “Gayrimenkul insaati ile ilgili Anlasmalar” 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

donemleri icin gecerlidir.

UFRYK 16, “Yurtdisindaki Isletme ile ilgili Net Yatirnmin 1 Kasim 2008 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

Finansal Riskten Korunmasi” donemleri icin gecerlidir.

UFRYK 17, “Parasal Olmayan Varliklarin Hissedarlara Dagitimi” | 1 Temmuz 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

donemleri icin gegerlidir.

UFRYK 18, “Musterilerden Varlik Transferi” 1 Temmuz 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

donemleri icin gecerlidir.

o UFRS 2, “Hisse Bazli Odemeler” 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

Hakedis Kosullar ve iptallerine iliskin Degisiklik. donemleri icin gegerlidir.

e UFRS 1, “Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlarinin 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

ilk Kez Uygulanmas!” donemleri icin gecerlidir.

UFRS'lerin ilk Kez Uygulanmasinda Yatinm Maliyetlerine

iliskin Degisiklik

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYii VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI O P E RA T I 0 N 5
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2.5 Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Company has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“the IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB that
are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2008.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008 but they are not relevant to the Company's operations:

IFRIC 11, “IFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions”,

IFRIC 12, “Service concession arrangements”,

IFRIC 14, “IAS 19- The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction”.
IAS 39, IFRS 7 “Amendments relating to classification of Financial Assets”

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Company

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 8, “Operating segments” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

IFRIC 13, “Customer loyalty programmes” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

IFRIC 15, “Agreements for the construction of real estate” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

IFRIC 16, “Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2008

IFRIC 17, “Distributions of non-cash assets to owners” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

IFRIC 18, “Transfers of Assets from Customers” Effective for transfers received on or after 1 July 2009

e |FRS 2, “Share-based Payment” Amendment relating to Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

vesting conditions and cancellations”

o |FRS 1, “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting | Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Standards
Amendment relating to cost of an investment on first-time

adoption”
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.5 Yeni ve Revize Edilmis Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlari (devami)

e UFRS 3, “Isletme Birlesmeleri” 1 Temmuz 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap
e UMS 27, “Konsolide ve Bireysel Finansal Tablolar” UMS 28, donemleri icin gegerlidir.

“Istiraklerdeki Yatinmlar”

UMS 31 “is Ortakliklarindaki Paylar”

Satin Alma Yénteminin Uygulanmasi Hakkinda Kapsamli

Degisiklik

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.5 Adoption of new and revised standards (cont'd)

e |FRS 3, “Business Combinations” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
e |AS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

e |AS 28, “Investments in Associates”

¢ |AS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” Comprehensive revision on

applying the acquisition method

UMS 23, “(Revize) Bor¢lanma Maliyetleri”
Dogrudan Giderlestirmeyi Engelleyen Kapsamli Degisiklikler.

1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

donemleri icin gegerlidir.

UMS 27, “Konsolide ve Konsolide Olmayan Finansal Tablolar”

UFRS'lerin ilk Kez Uygulanmasinda Yatirim Maliyetlerine

1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

donemleri icin gecerlidir.

e |AS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
e |AS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation” Amendments
relating to disclosure of puttable instruments and obligations

arising on liquidation

iliskin Degisiklik

UMS 1, “Finansal Tablolarin Sunumu” 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

UMS 32, “Finansal Araglar: Sunum” Geri Satin Alma Opsiyonlu | dénemleri icin gecerlidir.
Finansal Araglar ve Nakde Cevrilmelerinde Dogacak

Yiikiimliiliiklerin Agiklanmasi Hakkinda Degisiklik

UMS 1, “Finansal Tablolarin Sunumu” 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

Dogrudan Oz kaynaga Kaydedilen Net Gelir Tablosu donemleri icin gegerlidir.

Gerekliligine iliskin Kapsamli Degisiklikler

UMS 39, “Finansal Araglar: Muhasebelestirme ve Olcme” 1 Temmuz 2009 tarihinde veya bu tarihten sonra baslayan hesap

Riskten Korunmaya Konu Olabilecek Kalemlere ilgili Degisiklikler | dénemleri icin gecerlidir.

UFRS 1, “Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlarinin itk Uygulamasi” ve UMS 27 “Konsolide ve Konsolide Olmayan Finansal
Tablolar” a yapilan degisiklik

Degisiklik, UFRS'yi ilk defa uygulayan sirketlerin agilis bilancolarinda bagli ortakliklardaki, miistereken kontrol edilen isletmelerdeki
veya istiraklerdeki yatinmlarin maliyetini UMS 27'ye uygun olarak veya tahmini maliyet degerleriyle belirlenmelerine olanak tanimaktadir.
UMS 27'ye yapilan degisiklik bagli ortaklik, miistereken kontrol edilen isletmeler veya istiraklerden elde edilen temettiiniin konsolide
olmayan finansal tablolarda gelir tablosunda yansitilmasini gerektirmektedir. Bu standartlarin Sirket'in mali tablolar {izerinde 6nemli
bir etkisinin olmasi beklenmemektedir.

UFRS 2 “Hisse Bazli Odemeler”

Degisen standartla, hakedis kosulu'nun tanimlanmasi ve performans ve hizmet kosullari haricindeki kosullar icin *haketmeme kosulu'
kavramina aciklik getirilmektedir. Standart ayni zamanda, gerek isletme gerekse karsi taraf (calisan veya hizmet saglayan) tarafindan
iptal edilen ddiillerin ayni sekilde muhasebelestirilecegini ifade etmektedir. UFRS 2'nin Sirket'in finansal tablolara etkisinin olmayacagi
beklenmektedir.

UFRS 8 “Faaliyet Boliimleri”
UFRS 8 “Faaliyet Bolimleri”, UMS 14 'Boliimlere Gore Raporlama'nin yerine ge¢cmektedir. Bu standart, boliimlere gore raporlamanin

yonetimin bakis agisina gore hazirlanan ve i¢ raporlamada kullanilan boliimleme kriterleri baz alinarak yapilmasini getirmektedir.
Sirket, UFRS 8'i 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinden itibaren uygulamaya baslayacaktir.

IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements” Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Comprehensive revision including requiring a statement of

comprehensive income

e |AS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” | Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Amendments for eligible hedged items

Amendments to IFRS 1 “First-time Adaptation of International Financial Reporting Standards” and IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”

The amendment determines the cost of a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate on transition to IFRS under IAS 27 oras a
deemed cost. The amendment to IAS 27 requires the recognition of dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate
as income in the unconsolidated financial statements. The adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have
no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payments”

The amendments clarify the definition of vesting conditions and introduce the concept of a 'non-vesting condition' which is a condition
that is neither a service condition nor a performance condition. The standard also requires the application of similar criteria to be used
in the recognition of awards cancelled by either an entity or the counterparty (employer or employee). The adoption IFRS 2 in future
periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” supersedes IAS 14 'Segment Reporting”. The standard specifies how an entity should report information

about its operating segments based on the segment criteria used in internal reporting which are prepared by the management.
The Company will apply IFRS 8 effective 1 January 2009.
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31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE MALI TABLOLARA iLISKIN DIPNOTLAR

(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikgce Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.5 Yeni ve Revize Edilmis Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlari (devami)

UMS 32 ve UMS 1 “Tasfiye Durumunda Satilabilir Finansal Araglar ve Yiikiimliiliikler”

UMS 32'ye getirilen degisiklik tasfiyeden kaynaklanan satilabilir finansal araclar ile yiikiimldliiklerin, belirli kriterler yerine getirildigi

takdirde, sermaye araci olarak siniflandirilmasini gerektirmektedir. UMS 1'e getirilen degisiklik ise, sermaye araci olarak siniflandirilan
satilabilir finansal araglarin tanimlanmasi ve agiklanmasini gerektirmektedir. Bu standartlarin Sirket'in mali tablolari izerinde 6nemli
bir etkisinin olmasi beklenmemektedir.

UMS 23, “(Revize) Bor¢clanma Maliyetleri”

Degisiklik, isletmelerce, bir 6zellikli varligin elde edilmesi, insaasi veya iiretimi ile dogrudan iliskilendirilebilen bor¢lanma maliyetlerinin,
ilgili 6zellikli varligin maliyetinin bir parcasi olarak aktiflestirilmesini gerektirmektedir. Bor¢lanma maliyetlerinin olustugu anda
giderlestirilmesi secenegi bu degisiklik ile sona erecektir. Sirket, UMS23 (Revize) standardini 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinden itibaren
uygulayacaktir.

UFRS 3, “Isletme Birlesmeleri”

Degisiklikler, isletme birlesmelerindeki satin alimlar ile ilgili maliyetlerin olustugu anda gider yazilmasini ve satin alim sirasinda
muhasebelestirilen kosullu bedelin gergcege uygun degerinde sonradan meydana gelen degisikliklerin serefiyeden diizeltilmesi yerine
gelir tablosunda dikkate alinmasini gerektirmektedir.

UFRYK 13, “Miisteri Sadakat Programlari”

UFRYK 13'e gtre, miisteri sadakat programlari satis islemlerinin farkli bir bileseni seklinde muhasebelesmelidir. Tahsil edilen bedelin
rayi¢ degerinin bir kismi miisteriye saglanan menfaatlere dagitilarak, s6z konusu menfaatler miisteri tarafindan kullanildikca gelir
kaydedilmelidir. UFRYK 13'iin, Sirket'in bu tarz bir uygulamasi olmamasi sebebiyle, Sirket'in finansal tablolarina etkisi olmayacagi
ongoriilmektedir.

UFRYK 15, “Gayrimenkul insaati ile ilgili Anlasmalar ”

UFRYK 15, bir gayrimenkuliin insaati i¢in yapilan anlasmanin, UMS 11 “insaat Sézlesmeleri” standardi veya UMS 18 “Hasilat” standardi
kapsamina girip girmediginin ve buna bagli olarak da bdyle bir gayrimenkul insasindan elde edilen gelirin ne zaman muhasebelestirileceginin
belirlenmesi konusunda yol gosterir.

UFRYK 16, “Yurtdisindaki isletmede Bulunan Net Yatirnim ile lgili Riskten Korunma”

UFRYK 16, i¢ ana konuya agiklik getirmektedir: Finansal tablolarda kullanilan sunum para birimi bir isletmenin finansal korunma
muhasebesi uygulayabilmesine gerekge olusturmaz. Dolayisiyla, bir ana kurulus yalnizca kendi finansal tablolarinda kullanilan para
birimi ile yabanci operasyonlarinda kullanilan para birimi farkindan dogan kur farklarini finansal riskten korunma riski olarak adlandirabilir.
Finansal riskten korunma araci grup icindeki isletme ya da isletmelerce elde tutulabilir. Bu yorumun Sirket'in finansal tablolarina bir
etkisi olmasi beklenmemektedir.

UFRYK 17 “Parasal olmayan varliklarin hissedarlara dagitim”

UFRYK 17, hissedarlarin teslim alacagi parasal veya parasal olmayan varliklari segme hakkina sahip olmalari durumu da dahil olmak
tizere, karsilikli olan tiim parasal olmayan varliklarin dagitimi icin uygulanacaktir. Bu yorumun Sirket'in finansal tablolarina bir etkisi
olmasi beklenmemektedir.

UFRYK 18 “Miisterilerden Varlik Transferi”

Yorum, misterilerden alinan maddi duran varliklarin, insaat yapimi i¢in alinan nakdin veya bu tiirde miisterilerden alinan varliklarin
muhasebelestirilmesi konusuna agiklik getirmektedir. Bu yorumun Sirket'in finansal tablolarina bir etkisi olmasi beklenmemektedir.

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2.5 Adoption of new and revised standards (cont'd)
IAS 32 and IAS 1 “Puttable Instruments and Obligations Arising On Liquidation”

Under the revised IAS 32, subject to specified criteria are being met, puttable instruments and obligations arising on liquidation will
be classified as equity while, the amendment to IAS 1 requires the definition and disclosure of such instruments, which are classified
as equity. The adoption of these standards in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs”

The amendment requires an entity to capitalize borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The amendment will eliminate the expensing option of borrowing costs in the
period in which they are incurred. The Company will apply IAS 23 (Revised) for annual periods beginning from 1 January 2009.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

The amendments require the recognition of an acquisition related cost of a business combination as an expense in the period in which
the cost is incurred. It also requires subsequent changes in the fair value of a contingent consideration recognized in business combination
to be recognized in the statement of income rather than in equity.

IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes”

Under IFRIC 13, customer loyalty programmes should be recognized as a separately identifiable component of the sales transaction(s).
A portion of the fair value of the consideration received in respect of the initial sale shall be allocated to the award credits and the
consideration allocated to award credits should be recognized as revenue when awards credits are redeemed. The adoption IFRIC 13
in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company because the interpretation is not relevant
to its operations.

IFRIC 15, “Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate”

IFRIC 15 provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreement for the construction of real estate is within the scope of IAS
11 Construction Contracts or IAS 18 Revenue and, accordingly, when revenue from the construction should be recognized. The adoption
of the Interpretation in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

IFRIC 16 “Hedges of A Net Investment In A Foreign Operation”

IFRIC 16 provides guidance on three main issues: The presentation currency used in the entity's financial statements cannot be used
as a basis for the application of hedge accounting. Therefore, a hedged risk can be considered as the exchange differences arising
between the functional currency of the foreign operation and the presentation currency used in the financial statements of the parent
entity. A hedging instrument can be held within the Company or companies. The adoption of the Interpretation in future periods will
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRIC 17 “Distributions of Non-Cash Assets To Owners”

IFRIC 17 applies to all reciprocal non-cash distributions of assets by an entity to its owners, including the distributions that give owners
a choice of receiving either non-cash assets or a cash alternative. The adoption of the Interpretation in future periods will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRIC 18 “Transfers of Assets From Customers”

The Interpretation clarifies the accounting for cash received from a customer that must be used only to acquire or construct the item
of property, plant, and equipment in order to connect the customer to a network or provide the customer with ongoing access to a
supply of goods or services. The adoption of the Interpretation in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements
of the Company.
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(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikgce Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.5 Yeni ve Revize Edilmis Uluslararasi Finansal Raporlama Standartlari (devami)

UMS 1, “Finansal Tablolarin Sunulusu” (Degisiklik)

Finansal tablolarda sunulan bilgilerin yararini artirmak amaciyla UMS 1 degisiklige tabi tutulmustur. Ozsermaye degisim tablosunun
sadece hissedarlar ile yapilan islemleri icermesi, Kar Zarar Tablosuna ek olarak, “Diger Kapsamli Kar Zarar Tablosu” adinda, tiim gelir
ve harcama kalemlerini kar zarar olarak siniflandiracak yeni bir finansal tablonun yayimlanmaya baslamasi ve yeni donemlerde bir
onceki doneme ait finansal tablolarin yeniden yorumlanmasi veya yeni muhasebe politikalarinin geriye doniik olarak fi¢tincii bir kolonda
gecmis donemlere ait etkilerinin yayimlanmasi standartta yapilan ana degisikliklerdir. Sirket, finansal tablolarin sunulusuna iliskin ilgili
degisiklikleri 2009'da yapacaktir.

UMS 39, “Finansal Araclar: Muhasebelestirme ve Olcme” Riskten Korunmaya Konu Olabilecek Kalemlerle ilgili Degisiklikler

Bu degisiklik, enflasyona karsi riskten korunma muhasebesinin ancak ilgili finansal aracin nakit cikislarinin s6zlesmeden kaynaklanacak
sekilde enflasyona bagli olmasi halinde yapilabilecegine aciklik getirmektedir.

2.6 Hasilat

Gelirler, tahsil edilmis veya edilecek olan alacak tutarinin gercege uygun degeri iizerinden 6l¢ilir. Tahmini miisteri iadeleri,
indirimler ve karsiliklar s6z konusu tutardan diisiilmektedir.

Mallarin satisi

Mal satisina iliskin hasilat, asagidaki tiim kosullar yerine geldiginde finansal tablolara yansitilir.

(@) Isletmenin mallarinin sahipligi ile ilgili Gnemli risk ve getirileri aliciya devretmis olmasi;

(b) Isletmenin satilan mallar iizerinde etkin bir kontrolii veya sahipligin genel olarak gerektirdigi sekilde bir yénetim etkinligini
slirdirmemesi;

(c) Hasilat tutarinin giivenilir bicimde 6lciilebilmesi;

(d) isleme iliskin ekonomik yararlarin isletmece elde edilmesinin muhtemel olmasi;

(e) isleme iliskin yiiklenilen veya yiiklenilecek olan maliyetlerin giivenilir bicimde 6lciilebilmesi.

Hizmet sunumu

Hasilat, ancak isleme iliskin ekonomik yararlarin isletme tarafindan elde edilmesi muhtemel oldugunda finansal tablolara yansitilir.
Ancak daha 6nce muhasebelestirilmis olan hasilat tutarinin tahsil edilebilirligi konusunda bir belirsizlik ortaya ¢ikarsa, tahsil
edilemeyen veya tahsil edilebilmesi muhtemel olmaktan ¢ikan tutar baslangicta kayda alinmis hasilatin diizeltilmesi yerine gider
olarak finansal tablolara yansitilir.

isletme tarafindan islemin karsi taraflariyla asagidakiler iizerinde anlasmaya vardiktan sonra giivenilir tahminlerde bulunabilecegi
kabul edilir:

(@) Taraflarca sunulacak ve alinacak hizmetle ilgili olarak her iki tarafin yaptirima baglanmis haklari,
(b) Hizmet bedeli,
() Odeme sekli ve kosullari.

Faiz gelirleri

Faiz geliri, kalan anapara bakiyesi ve ilgili finansal varliktan beklenen 6mrii boyunca elde edilecek tahmini nakit girislerini s6z konusu
varligin net defter degerine getiren efektif faiz oranina gore ilgili donemde tahakkuk ettirilir.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.5 Adoption of new and revised standards (cont'd)

IAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial statements”

IAS 1 has been revised in order to improve users' ability to analyze and compare the information given in financial statements.
Changes made to the revised standard are: the statement of changes in equity can only include transactions with shareholders; in
addition to statement of income, presentation of a new “Statement of Other Comprehensive Income” showing all income and expense
items as profit and loss; and interpretation of prior financial statements in the current period, or presentation of the prior effects of
the retrospective application of new accounting policies in a newly formed column in the financial statements.The Company will apply
the related amendments in 2009.

IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” Amendments relating to hedging items.

The amendment clarifies that inflation may only be hedged if changes in inflation are a contractually specified portion of cash flows
of a recognised financial instrument.

2.6 Revenue:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates, and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods:
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

(@ Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

(b) The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

() The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services:

Revenue is recognised only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the enterprise.
However, when an uncertainty arises about the collectability of an amount already included in revenue, the uncollectable amount, or
the amount in respect of which recovery has ceased to be probable, is recognised as an expense, rather than as an adjustment of the
amount of revenue originally recognised.

An enterprise is generally able to make reliable estimates after it has agreed to the following with the other parties to the transaction:
(@) each party's enforceable rights regarding the service to be provided and received by the parties;

(b) the consideration to be exchanged

(©) the manner and terms of settlement.

Interest revenue:

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount.
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.7 Stoklar

Stoklar, maliyetin ya da net gerceklesebilir degerin diisiik olani ile degerlenmektedir. Stoklarin maliyeti; tiim satin alma maliyetlerini,
doniistiirme maliyetlerini ve stoklarin mevcut durumuna ve konumuna getirilmesi icin katlanilan diger maliyetleri igerir. Stoklarin
doniistiirme maliyetleri; direk iscilik giderleri gibi, tiretimle dogrudan iliskili maliyetleri kapsar. Bu maliyetler ayrica ilk madde ve
malzemenin mamule doniistiiriilmesinde katlanilan sabit ve degisken genel {iretim giderlerinden sistematik bir sekilde dagitilan
tutarlari da igerir.

Stoklarin maliyetinin hesaplanmasinda agirlikli ortalama maliyet yontemi uygulanmaktadir. Net gerceklestirilebilir deger, olagan ticari
faaliyet icerisinde olusan tahmini satis fiyatindan tahmini tamamlanma maliyeti ve satisi gerceklestirmek icin yiiklenilmesi gereken
tahmini maliyetlerin toplaminin indirilmesiyle elde edilir.

2.8 Maddi Duran Varliklar

Uretim ya da mal veya hizmetin verilmesinde veya idari amaglar icin kullanimda tutulan arazi ve binalar, maliyet tutarlariyla ifade edilir.
Maddi duran varliklar, 1 Ocak 2005 tarihinden dnce satin alinan kalemler icin 31 Aralik 2004 tarihi itibariyle enflasyonun etkilerine gére
diizeltilmis maliyet degerlerinden; 2005 ve sonrasinda alinan kalemler icin satin alim maliyet degerlerinden birikmis amortisman ve
kalici deger kayiplari diisiilerek mali tablolara yansitilir.

Maddi duran varliklar dogrusal amortisman metoduyla amortismana tabi tutulmustur. Arsa, faydali mriiniin sinirsiz kabul edilmesinden

dolayr amortismana tabi tutulmamaktadir. Maddi duran varliklarin amortisman dénemleri, tahmin edilen faydali 6miirleri esas alinarak,
asagida belirtilmistir:

Binalar, yeralti ve yeriistii diizenleri 25yl
Makine, tesis ve cihazlar 10 yil
Tasit araglan 4yl
Doseme ve demirbaslar 6yil

Beklenen faydali dmdir, kalinti deger ve amortisman yéntemi, tahminlerde ortaya ¢ikan degisikliklerin olasi etkilerini ileriye doniik olarak
tespit etmek amaciyla her yil gbzden gecirilir.

Maddi duran varliklarin elden gikartilmasi ya da bir maddi duran varligin hizmetten alinmasi sonucu olusan kar veya zarar satis hasilati
ile varligin defter degeri arasindaki fark olarak belirlenerek, gelir tablosuna dabhil edilir.

2.9 Maddi Olmayan Duran Varliklar

Maddi olmayan duran varliklar, 1 Ocak 2005 tarihinden &nce satin alinan kalemler UMS 29'a gére endekslenmis tarihi satin alim
maliyetlerinden ve bu tarihten sonra satin alinan kalemler satin alim maliyeti degerinden, birikmis itfa ve tiikenme paylari ile kalici
deger kayiplari diistilmiis olarak gosterilir. Satin alinan maddi olmayan duran varliklar, 6zellikle yazilimlar, bes yillik faydali 5miirleri
{izerinden dogrusal amortisman yontemi kullanilarak itfa edilir. UMS 38'e gore, arastirma giderleri olustugu anda giderlestirilmektedir.

Gelecekteki tiriinlerle ilgili ve isletme biinyesinde olusturulan maddi olmayan duran varliklar, Sirket'e gelecekte ekonomik fayda
saglamasinin miimkiin oldugu durumlarda maliyet degerinden aktiflestirilmektedir. Aktiflestirme icin gerekli kosullar saglanamadiginda,
gelistirme maliyetleri olustuklar donemde gelir tablosuna gider olarak kaydedilmektedir. Maliyet tutari gelistirme icin yapilan biitiin
direk maliyetleri ve gelistirme ile ilgili genel giderlerin uygun bir kismini icermektedir. Gelistirme maliyetleri dogrusal amortisman
yontemi kullanilarak on yilda, tiretimin baslangicindan modelin ve gelistirilen tinitenin parcalarinin kullanim 6mrii siiresince itfa edilir.

2.10 Varliklarda Deger Diisiikliigii

Sirket, her bilanco tarihinde maddi ve maddi olmayan duran varliklarinin, maliyet degerinden birikmis amortismanlar ve itfa paylar
diisiilerek bulunan defter degerine iliskin deger kaybinin olduguna dair herhangi bir gésterge olup olmadigini degerlendirir. Eger boyle
bir gosterge mevcutsa, deger diistikligii tutarini belirleyebilmek icin o varligin geri kazanilabilir tutari tahmin edilir. Varligin tek basina
geri kazanilabilir tutarinin hesaplanmasinin miimkiin olmadigi durumlarda, o varligin ait oldugu nakit tireten biriminin geri kazanilabilir
tutari hesaplanir.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.7 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead
expenses, are assigned to inventories held by the method most appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with the majority being
valued on weighted average basis. The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production, such
as direct labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting
materials into finished goods.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make a sale.

2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated at their cost.
Property, plant and equipment acquired before 1 January 2005 are carried at indexed historical cost based on the effects of inflation
as of December 31, 2004 in accordance with IAS 29, acquisitions after 1 January 2005 are carried at historical cost and are presented
after depreciation and impairment loss.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, using the straight-line method. Land is not depreciated as it

is deemed to have an indefinite life. The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment, which approximate the useful lives
of such assets, are as follows:

Buildings and land improvements 25 years
Machinery and equipments 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 6 years
2.9 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired before 1 January 2005 are carried at indexed historical cost in accordance with IAS 29, acquisitions in 2005
are carried at historical cost and are presented after amortization and impairment loss. Purchased intangible assets, primarily software,
are amortized over five years using the straight-line method. In accordance with IAS 38, research costs are recognized as expense when
incurred.

Development costs for future products and other internally generated intangible assets are capitalized at cost, provided manufacture
of the products is likely to bring the Company an economic benefit. If the criteria for recognition as assets are not met, the expenses
are recognized in the income statement in the year in which they are incurred. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to the
development process as well as appropriate portions of development-related overheads. The costs are amortized in ten years using
the straight-line method from the start of production over the expected life cycle of the models or components developed units.

2.10 Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether

there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.10 Varliklarda Deger Diisiikliigii (devami)

Makul ve tutarli bir dagilimin miimkiin oldugu durumlarda, Sirket'in merkezi varliklar nakit iireten bagimsiz birimlere dagitilir ya da
makul ve tutarli bir dagilimin miimkiin olabilecegi nakit tireten birimlerinin en kiiciik sinifina tahsis edilir.

Geri kazanilabilir tutar, satis maliyetleri diisiildiikten sonra elde edilen gercege uygun deger veya kullanimdaki degerin biiyiik olanidir.
Kullanimdaki deger hesaplanirken, gelecege ait tahmini nakit akimlari, paranin zaman degeri ve varliga 6zgii riskleri yansitan vergi
oncesi bir iskonto orani kullanilarak bugtinkii degerine indirilir.

Varligin (veya nakit tireten birimin) geri kazanilabilir tutarinin, defter degerinden daha az olmasi durumunda, varligin (veya nakit iireten
birimin) defter degeri, geri kazanilabilir tutarina indirilir. Bu durumda olusan deger diisiikliigii kayiplari gelir tablosunda muhasebelestirilir,
ancak, ilgili varligin yeniden degerlenmis olmasi durumunda, deger diisiikligii kaybi yeniden degerleme fonundan indirilir.

Deger dusiikliigiiniin iptali nedeniyle varligin (veya nakit tireten birimin) kayitli degerinde meydana gelen artis, 6nceki yillarda deger
disiikltigiiniin mali tablolara alinmamis olmasi halinde olusacak olan defter degerini (@amortismana tabi tutulduktan sonra kalan net
tutar) asmamalidir. Deger dusiikliigtintn iptali gelir tablosuna kayit edilir ancak ilgili varligin yeniden degerlenmis olmasi durumunda
iptal edilen deger diisiikliigii kaybi yeniden degerleme fonunailave edilir.

2.11 Bor¢lanma Maliyetleri

Kullanima ve satisa hazir hale getirilmesi nemli 6lciide zaman isteyen varliklar s6z konusu oldugunda, satin alinmasi, yapimi veya
tiretimi ile direkt iliski kurulabilen faiz giderleri, ilgili varlik kullanima veya satisa hazir hale getirilene kadar maliyetine dahil edilmektedir.
Yatinmla ilgili kredinin heniiz harcanmamis kisminin gegici siire ile finansal yatinmlarda degerlendirilmesiyle elde edilen finansal yatirnm
geliri aktiflestirmeye uygun bor¢lanma maliyetlerinden mahsup edilir.

Diger tiim finansman giderleri, olustuklari dénemlerde gelir tablosuna kaydedilmektedir.
2.12 Finansal Araglar
Finansal Varliklar

Finansal yatinmlar, gercege uygun deger farki kar veya zarara yansitilan ve gercege uygun degerinden kayitlara alinan finansal varliklar
haricinde, gercege uygun piyasa degerinden alim islemiyle dogrudan iliskilendirilebilen harcamalar dusiildiikten sonra kalan tutar
tizerinden muhasebelestirilir. Yatirimlar, yatirim araglarinin ilgili piyasa tarafindan belirlenen siireye uygun olarak teslimati kosulunu
tasiyan bir kontrata bagli olan islem tarihinde kayitlara alinir veya kayitlardan ¢ikarilir.

Finansal varliklar “gercege uygun deger farki kar veya zarara yansitilan finansal varliklar”, “vadesine kadar elde tutulacak yatirimlar”,
“satilmaya hazir finansal varliklar” ve “kredi ve alacaklar” olarak siniflandirilir.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.10 Impairment of Assets (cont'd)

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.12 Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets

Investments are recognized and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of aninvestmentis under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured
at fair value, net of transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are
initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL),
'held-to-maturity investments', 'available-for-sale' (AFS) financial assets and 'loans and receivables'.
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)
2.12 Finansal Araglar (devami)

Finansal Varliklar (devami)
Satilmaya hazir finansal varliklar

Satilmaya hazir finansal varliklar (a) vadesine kadar elde tutulacak finansal olmayan varlik veya (b) alim satim amagli finansal olmayan
varliklardan olusmaktadir. Satilmaya hazir finansal varliklar kayitlara alindiktan sonra giivenilir bir sekilde 6l¢iilebiliyor olmasi kosuluyla
gercege uygun degerleriyle degerlenmektedir. Gercege uygun degeri giivenilir bir sekilde 6l¢lilemeyen ve aktif bir piyasasi olmayan
menkul kiymetler maliyet degeriyle gsterilmektedir. Satilmaya hazir finansal varliklara iliskin kar veya zararlara ilgili donemin gelir
tablosunda yer verilmektedir. Bu tiir varliklarin makul degerinde meydana gelen degisiklikler 6zkaynak hesaplari icinde gosterilmektedir.
ilgili varligin elden cikarilmasi veya deger diisiikliigii olmasi durumunda 6zkaynak hesaplarindaki tutar kar / zarar olarak gelir tablosuna
transfer edilir. Satilmaya hazir finansal varlik olarak siniflandirilan 6zkaynak araglarina yonelik yatirnmlardan kaynaklanan ve gelir
tablosunda muhasebelestirilen deger diisiis karsiliklari, sonraki donemlerde gelir tablosundan iptal edilemez. Satilmaya hazir olarak
siniflandinlan 6zkaynak araglari haricinde, deger diisiikliigii zarari sonraki donemde azalirsa ve azalis deger diisiikliigii zararinin
muhasebelestirilmesi sonrasinda meydana gelen bir olayla iliskilendirilebiliyorsa, dnceden muhasebelestirilen deger diisiikliigii zaran
gelir tablosunda iptal edilebilir.

Krediler ve alacaklar

Sabit ve belirlenebilir 6demeleri olan, piyasada islem gérmeyen ticari ve diger alacaklar ve krediler bu kategoride siniflandirilir. Krediler
ve alacaklar etkin faiz yontemi kullanilarak iskonto edilmis maliyeti lizerinden deger diisiikliigi diisilerek gosterilir.

Finansal varliklarda deger diistikliigii

Gercege uygun deger farki kar veya zarara yansitilan finansal varliklar disindaki finansal varlik veya finansal varlik gruplari, her bilango
tarihinde deger diistikligiine ugradiklarina iliskin gostergelerin bulunup bulunmadigina dair degerlendirmeye tabi tutulur. Finansal
varligin ilk muhasebelestirilmesinden sonra bir veya birden fazla olayin meydana gelmesi ve s6z konusu olayin ilgili finansal varlik veya
varlik grubunun giivenilir bir bicimde tahmin edilebilen gelecekteki nakit akimlar tizerindeki olumsuz etkisi sonucunda ilgili finansal
varligin deger diistikligiine ugradigina iliskin tarafsiz bir géstergenin bulunmasi durumunda deger diisiikligii zarari olusur. Kredi ve
alacaklar icin deger diisiikliigii tutar gelecekte beklenen tahmini nakit akimlarinin finansal varligin etkin faiz orani iizerinden iskonto
edilerek hesaplanan bugiinkii degeri ile defter degeri arasindaki farktir.

Bir karsilik hesabinin kullanilmasi yoluyla defter degerinin azaltildigi ticari alacaklar haricinde, biitiin finansal varliklarda, deger
dusiiklugii dogrudan ilgili finansal varligin kayitli degerinden diisdiliir. Ticari alacagin tahsil edilememesi durumunda s6z konusu tutar
karsilik hesabindan dusiilerek silinir. Karsilik hesabindaki degisimler gelir tablosunda muhasebelestirilir.

Satilmaya hazir 6zkaynak araglari haricinde, deger diisiikliigii zarar sonraki donemde azalirsa ve azalis deger diistikliigii zararinin
muhasebelestirilmesi sonrasinda meydana gelen bir olayla iliskilendirilebiliyorsa, nceden muhasebelestirilen deger diisiikliigii zarari,
deger diisiikliigiiniin iptal edilecegi tarihte yatinmin deger diistikliigi hichir zaman muhasebelestirilmemis olmasi durumunda ulasacagi
itfa edilmis maliyet tutarini asmayacak sekilde gelir tablosunda iptal edilir.

Satilmaya hazir 6zkaynak araclarinin gercege uygun degerinde deger diistikligli sonrasinda meydana gelen artis, dogrudan 6zkaynaklarda
muhasebelestirilir.

Nakit ve nakit benzerleri

Nakit ve nakit benzeri kalemleri, nakit para, vadesiz mevduat ve satin alim tarihinden itibaren vadeleri 3 ay veya 3 aydan daha az olan,
hemen nakde cevrilebilecek olan ve 6nemli tutarda deger degisikligi riski tasimayan yiiksek likiditeye sahip diger kisa vadeli yatirnmlardir.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.12 Financial Instruments (cont'd):
Financial assets (cont'd)
Available for sale financial assets

Investments other than (a) held-to-maturity debt securities and (b) held for trading securities are classified as available-for-sale, and
are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value except available-for-sale investments that do not have quoted prices in active
markets and whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost and restated to the equivalent purchasing power. Gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in the profit or loss for the period.
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for equity investments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortized cost,
the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized directly in equity.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments which their

maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHi ITIBARIYLE FINANSAL TABLOLAR
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(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikge Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.12 Finansal Araglar (devami)
Finansal Varliklar (devami)
Finansal Yiikiimliiliikler

Sirket'in finansal yiikiimliiliikleri ve 6zkaynak araglari, sozlesmeye bagli diizenlemelere, finansal bir yiikiimliliigtin ve 6zkaynaga dayali
bir aracin tanimlanma esasina gore siniflandirilir. Sirket'in tiim bor¢lar dusiildiikten sonra kalan varliklarindaki hakki temsil eden
sozlesme 6zkaynaga dayali finansal aragtir. Belirli finansal yiikiimliiliikler ve 6zkaynaga dayali finansal araglar i¢in uygulanan muhasebe
politikalar asagida belirtilmistir.

Finansal ylikiimliiliikler gercege uygun deger farki kar veya zarara yansitilan finansal yiikiimliiliikler veya diger finansal ytikiimliliikler
olarak siniflandirilir.

Gergege uygun deger farki kdr veya zarara yansitilan finansal yiikiimliiliikler

Gercege uygun deger farki kar veya zarara yansitilan finansal yiikiimliiliikler, gercege uygun degeriyle kayda alinir ve her raporlama
doneminde, bilanco tarihindeki gercege uygun degeriyle yeniden degerlenir. Gercege uygun degerlerindeki degisim, gelir tablosunda
muhasebelestirilir. Gelir tablosunda muhasebelestirilen net kazang ya da kayiplar, s6z konusu finansal yiikiimliiliik icin 6denen faiz
tutarini da kapsar.

Diger finansal yiikimliiliikler
Diger finansal yiikiimliiliikler baslangicta islem maliyetlerinden arindirilmis gercege uygun degerleriyle muhasebelestirilir.

Diger finansal yiikiimliiliikler sonraki donemlerde etkin faiz orani {izerinden hesaplanan faiz gideri ile birlikte etkin faiz yontemi
kullanilarak itfa edilmis maliyet bedelinden muhasebelestirilir.

Etkin faiz yontemi, finansal ylikiimliiliigiin itfa edilmis maliyetlerinin hesaplanmasi ve ilgili faiz giderinin iliskili oldugu doneme dagitilmasi
yontemidir. Etkin faiz orani; finansal aracin beklenen 6mrii boyunca veya uygun olmasi halinde daha kisa bir zaman dilimi siiresince
gelecekte yapilacak tahmini nakit ddemelerini tam olarak ilgili finansal yiikiimliliigtin net bugiinki degerine indirgeyen orandir.

2.13 Kur Degisiminin Etkileri

Sirket'in yasal kayitlarinda, yabanci para cinsinden (TL disindaki para birimleri) muhasebelestirilen islemler, islem tarihindeki kurlar
kullanilarak Tiirk Lirasi'na ¢evrilmektedir. Bilangoda yer alan dovize bagli parasal varlik ve borglar bilango tarihinde gecerli olan kurlar
kullanilarak Tuirk Lirasi'na cevrilmislerdir. Gercege uygun degerden 6lgiilen yabanci para birimindeki parasal olmayan kalemler gercege
uygun degerin belirlendigi tarihteki déviz kurlar kullanilarak gevrilir. Tarihi maliyet cinsinden &lgiilen yabanci para birimindeki parasal
olmayan kalemler yeniden cevrilmezler. Parasal kalemlerin ¢evirimden ve dévizli islemlerin tahsil ve tediyelerinden kaynaklanan kambiyo
karlari ve zararlar gelir tablosunda yer almaktadir.

2.14 Hisse Basina Kazan¢

Gelir tablosunda belirtilen hisse basina kazang, donem net karinin, donem boyunca piyasada bulunan hisse senetlerinin agirlikli
ortalama sayisina boliinmesi ile bulunmustur.

Tiirkiye'de sirketler, sermayelerini halihazirda bulunan hissedarlarina, ge¢mis yil kazanglarindan dagittiklari “bedelsiz hisse” yolu ile

artirabilmektedirler. Bu tip “bedelsiz hisse” dagitimlari, hisse basina kazan¢ hesaplamalarinda, ihrag edilmis hisse gibi degerlendirilir.
Buna gore, bu hesaplamalarda kullanilan agirlikli ortalama hisse sayisi, hisse senedi dagitimlarinin ge¢mise doniik etkileri de hesaplanarak
bulunmustur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.12 Financial Instruments (cont'd):
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized
in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

2.13 Foreign Currency Transactions:

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than TRY (foreign currencies) are recorded at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the period.

2.14 Earnings Per Share:

Earning per share stated on statements of income is calculated by dividing net profit by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “bonus shares” to shareholders from retained earnings. In computing
earnings per share, such “bonus share” distributions are assessed as issued shares. Accordingly, the retrospective effect for those
share distributions is taken into consideration in determining the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in this
computation.
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)
2.15 Bilanco Tarihinden Sonraki Olaylar

Bilanco tarihinden sonraki olaylar; kara iliskin herhangi bir duyuru veya diger secilmis finansal bilgilerin kamuya agiklanmasindan sonra
ortaya ¢tkmis olsalar dahi bilango tarihi ile bilangonun yayimi igin yetkilendirilme tarihi arasindaki tiim olaylari kapsar.

Sirket, bilanco tarihinden sonraki diizeltme gerektiren olaylarin ortaya ¢cikmasi durumunda, mali tablolara alinan tutarlari bu yeni
duruma uygun sekilde diizeltir.

2.16 Karsiliklar, Sarta Bagli Yiikiimliiliikler ve Sarta Bagli Varliklar

Sirket'in ge¢mis olaylardan kaynaklanan mevcut bir ytikiimliiliigtiniin bulunmasi, bu yiikiimliiligiin yerine getirilmesi icin ekonomik
fayda iceren kaynaklarin isletmeden ¢ikmasinin muhtemel olmasi ve s6z konusu yiikiimliiliik tutarinin giivenilir bir bigimde tahmin
edilebiliyor olmasi durumunda ilgili yiikiimliiltik, karsilik olarak mali tablolara alinir. Sarta bagl yiikiimliiliikler, ekonomik fayda iceren
kaynaklarin isletmeden ¢ikma ihtimalinin muhtemel hale gelip gelmediginin tespiti amaciyla siirekli olarak degerlendirmeye tabi tutulur.
Sarta bagli yiikiimliiliik olarak isleme tabi tutulan kalemler icin gelecekte ekonomik fayda iceren kaynaklarin isletmeden ¢ikma ihtimalinin
muhtemel hale gelmesi durumunda, bu sarta bagli yiikiimliiliik, giivenilir tahminin yapilamadigi durumlar harig, olasiliktaki degisikligin
meydana geldigi donemin mali tablolarinda karsilik olarak kayitlara alinir.

Sirket sarta bagli yiikiimliiliklerin muhtemel hale geldigi ancak ekonomik fayda iceren kaynaklarin tutari hakkinda giivenilir tahminin
yapilamamasi durumunda ilgili ylikiimliiliigti dipnotlarinda gostermektedir.

Gegmis olaylardan kaynaklanan ve mevcudiyeti isletmenin tam anlamiyla kontroliinde bulunmayan bir veya daha fazla kesin olmayan
olayin gerceklesip gerceklesmemesi ile teyit edilecek olan varlik, sarta bagli varlik olarak degerlendirilir. Ekonomik fayda iceren
kaynaklarin isletmeye girme ihtimalinin yiiksek bulunmasi durumunda sarta bagli varliklar mali tablo dipnotlarinda agiklanir.

Karsilik tutarinin 6denmesi icin kullanilan ekonomik faydalarin tamaminin ya da bir kisminin ii¢tincii taraflarca karsilanmasinin beklendigi
durumlarda tahsil edilecek olan tutar, bu tutarin geri 6demesinin kesin olmasi ve tutarin giivenilir bir sekilde hesaplanmasi durumunda,
bir varlik olarak muhasebelestirilir.

Garanti maliyetleriyle ilgili karsiliklar, Sirket'e ait yiikiimliiliiklerin karsilanmasi icin yonetim tarafindan tahmin edilen en uygun yonteme
gore, ilgili triinlerin satis tarihinde muhasebelestirilir.

2.17 Muhasebe Politikalari, Muhasebe Tahminlerinde Degisiklik ve Hatalar

Muhasebe politikalarinda yapilan 6nemli degisiklikler ve tespit edilen 6nemli muhasebe hatalar geriye doniik olarak uygulanir ve
onceki donem mali tablolari yeniden diizenlenir. Muhasebe tahminlerindeki degisiklikler, yalnizca bir déneme iliskin ise degisikligin
yapildigi cari donemde, gelecek donemlere iliskin ise hem degisikligin yapildigi donemde hem de gelecek donemde, ileriye yonelik
olarak uygulanir.

2.18 liskili Taraflar
Bu finansal tablolar agisindan, ortaklar, iist diizey yonetim kadrosu ve yonetim kurulu iiyeleri, aileleri ve bunlar tarafindan kontrol edilen
veya onlara bagli sirketler, istirak ve ortakliklar iligkili taraflar olarak kabul ve ifade edilmislerdir.

2.19 Finansal Bilgilerin Béliimlere Gore Raporlanmasi

Raporlanabilir bolim, bolim bilgileri agiklanmasi zorunlu olan bir endiistriyel boliim veya cografi boliimdiir. Endistriyel boliimler, belirli
bir mal veya hizmeti ya da birbirleriyle iliskili mal veya hizmet grubunu saglama veya risk ve fayda agisindan Sirket'in diger bélimlerinden
farkli 6zelliklere sahip boliimlerdir. Cografi bélimler, Sirket'in belirli bir ekonomik ¢evrede mal veya hizmet temin eden ve risk ve fayda
acisindan baska bir ekonomik cevre icerisinde faaliyet gosteren diger boliimlerden farkli 6zelliklere sahip boliimlerdir.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.15 Events After Balance Sheet Date:

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The Company records adjusting events after the balance sheet date and disclose non-adjusting events after the balance sheet date
on the attached financial statements.

2.16 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabilities
are assessed continuously to determine probability of outflow of economically beneficial assets. For contingent liabilities, when an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are probable, provision is recognized for this contingent liability in the period when
the probability has changed, except for cases where a reliable estimate can not be made.

When the outflow of economic benefits from the Company is probable but the amount can not be measured reliably the Company
discloses this fact in the footnotes.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurence or non-
occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent assets is disclosed, where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable
is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Provisions of warranty costs are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors' best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the Company's obligation.

2.17 Changes in Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors

Adjustments due to the changes in accounting policies or accounting errors are applied retrospectively and the financial statements
of the previous year are restated changes in accounting estimates are deemed to affect that period only, and thus adjustments applied
in the current period. If however the estimated changes are for the following periods, changes are applied both on the current and
following periods prospectively.

2.18 Related Parties

For the purpose of accompanying financial statements, shareholders' of the Company and other companies owned by the shareholders',
their directors and key management personnel and any companies in which they are known to be related, are considered and referred
to as related parties.

2.19 Segmental Information

Areportable segment is a business segment or a geographical segment identified based on the foregoing definitions for which segment
information is required to be disclosed. A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing
an individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other business segments. A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
components operating in other economic environments.
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.19 Finansal Bilgilerin Béliimlere Gore Raporlanmasi (devami)

Bir endustriyel boliimiin veya cografi boliimiin raporlanabilir b6lim olarak belirlenebilmesi icin gereklilik, bolim hasilatinin biiyiik bir
cogunlugunun grup disi miisterilere yapilan satislardan kazanilmasi ve grup disi miisterilere yapilan satislardan ve diger boliimler ile
gerceklestirilen islemlerden elde edilen boliim hasilatinin, tiim bdliimlere iliskin i¢ ve dis toplam hasilatin en az %10'unu olusturmasi
veya kar veya zararla sonuglanan boliim sonucunun kar elde edilen béliimlerin toplam sonuglari ve zarar eden boliimlerin toplam
sonuglarinin mutlak anlamda biiyiik olaninin en az %10'una isabet etmesi veya boliim varliklarinin, tiim bélimlerin toplam varliklarinin
en az %10'unu olusturmasidr.

Cografi bolimler bazindaki bilgiler, Sirket'in faaliyetlerinin, mali tablolar genelinde ve parasal 6nemsellik kavraminda, Tiirkiye digindaki

2.20 Kurum Kazanci Uzerinden Hesaplanan Vergiler
Gelir vergisi gideri, cari vergi ve ertelenmis vergi giderinin toplamindan olusur.

Cari vergi

Cari yil vergi yiikiimliiltigii, donem karinin vergiye tabi olan kismi tizerinden hesaplanir. Vergiye tabi kar, diger yillarda vergilendirilebilen
veya indirilebilen gelir veya gider kalemleri ile vergilendirilemeyen veya indirilemeyen kalemleri hari¢ tuttugundan dolayi, gelir tablosunda
belirtilen kardan farklilik gosterir. Sirket'in cari vergi yiikiimliligii bilango tarihi itibariyle yasallagsmis ya da 6nemli 6l¢iide yasallasmis
vergi orani kullanilarak hesaplanmistir.

Ertelenmis vergi

Ertelenen vergi yiikiimliiliigli veya varligi, varliklarin ve yiikiimliiliiklerin mali tablolarda gosterilen tutarlari ile yasal vergi matrahi
hesabinda dikkate alinan tutarlari arasindaki gegici farkliliklarin bilango yontemine gore vergi etkilerinin yasalasmis vergi oranlari
dikkate alinarak hesaplanmasiyla belirlenmektedir. Ertelenen vergi yiikiimliliikleri vergilendirilebilir gecici farklarin tiimii i¢in
hesaplanirken, indirilebilir gegici farklardan olusan ertelenen vergi varliklari, gelecekte vergiye tabi kar elde etmek suretiyle bu farklardan
yararlanmanin kuvvetle muhtemel olmasi sartiyla hesaplanmaktadir. Serefiye veya isletme birlesmeleri disinda varlik veya yiikiimliiliiklerin
ilk defa mali tablolara alinmasindan dolayi olusan ve hem ticari hem de mali kar veya zarari etkilemeyen gegici zamanlama farklarina
iliskin ertelenen vergi yiikiimliiliigli veya varligi hesaplanmaz.

Ertelenen vergi yiikiimliliikleri, Sirket'in gegici farkliliklarin ortadan kalkmasini kontrol edebildigi ve yakin gelecekte bu farkin ortadan
kalkma olasiliginin diisiik oldugu durumlar haricinde, bagli ortaklik ve istiraklerdeki yatirimlar ve is ortakliklarindaki paylar ile
iliskilendirilen vergilendirilebilir gegici farklarin tlimii icin hesaplanir. Bu tiir yatinm ve paylar ile iliskilendirilen vergilendirilebilir gegici
farklardan kaynaklanan ertelenen vergi varliklari, yakin gelecekte vergiye tabi yeterli kar elde etmek suretiyle bu farklardan yararlanmanin
kuvvetle muhtemel olmasi ve gelecekte bu farklarin ortadan kalkmasinin muhtemel olmasi sartiyla hesaplanmaktadir.

Ertelenen vergi varliginin kayitl degeri, her bir bilanco tarihi itibariyle gbzden gecirilir. Ertelenmis vergi varliginin kayitli degeri, bir
kisminin veya tamaminin saglayacagi faydanin elde edilmesine imkan verecek diizeyde mali kar elde etmenin muhtemel olmadigi
oOlciide azaltilir.

Ertelenmis vergi varliklari ve yiikiimliiliikleri varliklarin gerceklesecegi veya yiikiimliiliiklerin yerine getirildigi donemde gecerli olmasi
beklenen ve bilango tarihi itibariyle kanunlasmis veya 6nemli 6l¢iide kanunlasmis vergi oranlari (vergi diizenlemeleri) {izerinden
hesaplanir. Ertelenmis vergi varliklari ve yiikiimliiliiklerinin hesaplanmasi sirasinda, Sirket'in bilanco tarihi itibariyle varliklarinin defter
degerini geri kazanma ya da yuikiimliiliiklerini yerine getirmesi icin tahmin ettigi yontemlerin vergi sonuclar dikkate alinir.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.19 Segmental Information (cont'd)

A business segment or geographical segment should be identified as a reportable segment if a majority of its revenue is earned from
sales to external customers and if its revenue from sales to external customers and from transactions with other segments is 10% or
more of the total revenue, external and internal, of all segments; or its segment result, whether profit or loss, is 10% or more of the
combined result of all segments in profit or the combined result of all segments in loss, whichever is the greater in absolute amount;
or its assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.

Geographical segments have been disclosed in these financial statements as the primary segment reporting format on the grounds
of materiality as the operations of the Company in geographical areas other than Turkey are reportable geographical segments
individually when compared with the overall financial statements.

2.20 Taxation and Deferred Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

@
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLiSKiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.20 Kurum Kazanci Uzerinden Hesaplanan Vergiler (devami)
Ertelenmis vergi (devami)

Ertelenmis vergi varliklar ve yiikiimldliikleri, cari vergi varliklariyla cari vergi yiikiimldliiklerini mahsup etme ile ilgili yasal bir hakkin
olmasi veya s6z konusu varlik ve yiikiimliiliiklerin ayni vergi mercii tarafindan toplanan gelir vergisiyle iliskilendirilmesi ya da Sirket'in
cari vergi varlik ve yiikiimliiliiklerini netlestirmek suretiyle 6deme niyetinin olmasi durumunda mahsup edilir.

2.21 Calisanlara Saglanan Faydalar / Kidem Tazminatlari

Tiirkiye'de mevcut kanunlar ve toplu is sozlesmeleri hiikiimlerine gore kidem tazminati, emeklilik veya isten ¢ikarilma durumunda
6denmektedir. Giincellenmis olan UMS 19 Calisanlara Saglanan Faydalar Standardi (“UMS 19”) uyarinca s6z konusu tiirdeki 6demeler
tanimlanmis emeklilik fayda planlari olarak nitelendirilir.

Bilancoda muhasebelestirilen kidem tazminati yiikiimliilug, tiim ¢alisanlarin emeklilikleri dolayisiyla ileride dogmasi beklenen
ylikiimliiliik tutarlarinin net bugtinkii degerine gore hesaplanmis ve finansal tablolara yansitilmistir. Hesaplanan tiim aktiieryal kazanglar
ve kayiplar gelir tablosuna yansitilmistir.

2.22 Nakit Akim Tablosu

Nakit akim tablosunda, doneme iliskin nakit akimlari esas, yatirim ve finansman faaliyetlerine dayali bir bicimde siniflandirnlarak
raporlanir.

Esas faaliyetlerden kaynaklanan nakit akimlari, Sirket'in esas faaliyetlerinden kaynaklanan nakit akimlarini gosterir.

Yatirim faaliyetleriyle ilgili nakit akimlari, Sirket'in yatirim faaliyetlerinde (sabit yatirimlar ve finansal yatirimlar) kullandigi ve elde ettigi
nakit akimlarini gosterir.

Finansman faaliyetlerine iliskin nakit akimlari, Sirket'in finansman faaliyetlerinde kullandig kaynaklari ve bu kaynaklarin geri 6demelerini
gosterir.

Hazir degerler, nakit para, vadesiz mevduat ve satin alim tarihinden itibaren vadeleri 3 ay veya 3 aydan daha az olan, hemen nakde
cevrilebilecek olan ve 6nemli tutarda deger degisikligi riskini tasimayan yiiksek likiditeye sahip diger kisa vadeli yatinmlardir.

2.23 Sermaye ve Temettiiler

Adi hisseler, 6zsermaye olarak siniflandirilir. Adi hisseler iizerinden dagitilan temettiiler, temettii dagitim karari alindig1 donemde
birikmis kardan indirilerek kaydedilir.

2.24 Gnemli Muhasebe Degerlendirme, Tahmin ve Varsayimlari

Hesaplama belirsizliginin ana kaynaklar
Bir sonraki doneme ait varlik ve yiikiimliliiklerin defter degerinde biiyiik diizeltmelere neden olacak dnemli risklere sahip gelecege
yonelik dnemli varsayimlar ile bilango tarihindeki hesaplama belirsizliginin diger ana kaynaklari asagida belirtilmistir.

Net Gergeklesebilir Deger (“NGD”)

Sirket'in Iran pazarinda satilmak iizere iirettigi ve bir satis s6zlesmesine bagli, rapor tarihi itibariyle satisi heniiz gerceklesmemis
yaklasik 1 yildir elinde bulunan 13.754.653 TL tutarinda ara¢ ve yedek parca stoklari bulunmaktadir. S6zlesmede satis fiyatlari ABD
Dolari cinsinden belirlendigi icin raporlama tarihindeki kurlara gére hesaplanan TL'sI net gerceklesebilir degerleri stok maliyetlerinin
tistiindedir. Satisin gerceklesmesi planlanan gelecek aylarda 1 ABD Dolari'nin 1,40 TL'nin altina diismesi durumunda piyasa kosullarina
gore net gerceklesebilir degerinin maliyetinin altinda kalma ve 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibari ile elde bulunan stoklarda deger dusiiklugii
ortaya ¢tkma ihtimali s6z konusudur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.20 Taxation and Deferred Tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

2.21 Employee Benefits / Retirement Pay Provision:

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or involuntarily leaving the Company.
Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement benefit plan as per International Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised)
“Employee Benefits” (“IAS 19”).

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses.

2.22 Statements of Cash Flows
In statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investment and finance activities.
Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash flows generated from the main operations of the Company.

Cash flows from investment activities express cash used in investment activities (direct investments and financial investments) and
cash flows generated from investment activities of the Company.

Cash flows relating to finance activities express sources of financial activities and payment schedules of the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments which their
maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.23 Share Capital and Dividends

Common shares are classified as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are approved
and declared.

2.24 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Net Realizable Value (“NRV”)

The Company has been keeping vehicles and spare parts inventory amounting to TRY 13.754.653 for more than 1 year which have been
manufactured to be sold specifically at the Iran market and whose sales have not been consummated as of the report date. Since the
prices are determined in US Dollars on the contract, net realizable value in TRY calculated from the foreign exchange rate as of the
report date is higher than the inventory cost. In the following months in which the sale is planned to be consummated, in the case

1 US Dollar falls below TRY 1,40, there is a probability that the net realizable value will be below the cost according to the market
conditions and that there will be an impairment loss on inventory held as of 31 December 2008.
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2. FINANSAL TABLOLARIN SUNUMUNA iLISKIiN ESASLAR (devami)

2.24 Onemli Muhasebe Degerlendirme, Tahmin ve Varsayimlari (devami)
Hesaplama belirsizliginin ana kaynaklari (devami)

Net Gergeklesebilir Deger (“NGD”) (devami)

Sirket'in 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibari ile elinde bulunan 27.359.520,16 TL tutarindaki Hyundai arag stoklarinin yapilan pazar analizlerine
gore, Haziran 2009 tarihinden sonra déviz kurundaki ve enflasyondaki artislara bagli olarak gerceklesmesi planlanan satis fiyatlarindaki
artislara bagli karli olarak satilacagi, dolayisi ile net gerceklesebilir degerlerinin maliyet degerlerinin iistiinde gerceklesecegi tahmin

edilmis ve bir deger diisus karsiligi ayrilmamustir. Satisin gerceklesmesi planlanan gelecek aylarda 1 ABD Dolari'nin 1,46 TL'nin altina
diismesi durumunda, enflasyonun belirgin bir sekilde diismesi halinde ve piyasa kosullarina da bagli olark, net gerceklesebilir degerinin
maliyetinin altinda kalma ve 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibari ile elde bulunan stoklarda deger diisiikliigii ortaya ¢cikma ihtimali s6z konusudur.

3.BOLUMLERE GORE RAPORLAMA

Sirket yonetimi Sirket'in risk ve getirilerinin cografi bolgelerden ziyade endiistriyel gelismelerden etkilendigini dikkate alarak birincil
b6lim raporlamasi formati olarak endiistriyel bolimleri kullanma karari almistir. Sirket yénetimi, Sirket'in otomotiv sektdriinde faaliyet
gOstermesi ve risk ve getiri agisindan farkli 6zellik tasiyan baska bir bolimii olmamasindan dolayi tek bir endustriyel b6liim altinda
faaliyet gosterdigine karar vermistir. Sirket'in faaliyet alani dusiintildigiinde {riinlerin niteligi ve Uiretim siiregleri benzerdir. Tek bir
endiistriyel boliim oldugundan dolayi birincil bélim ile ilgili bilgiler halihazirda bu mali tablolarda sunulmustur.

Sirket'in birincil boliim raporlama formati endiistriyel b6liim oldugundan ikincil b6lim raporlamasi amaci ile yil icerisindeki hasilatin
miisterilerin cografi konumu bazinda detayinin gosterilmesi gerekmektedir. Sirket'in yurtdisi satislarindan olusan geliri toplam gelirin
yiizde 10'undan diisiik oldugu icin, Sirket cografi bolimlere gore raporlama yapmaktadir.

1 Ocak-31 Aralik 2008 1 Ocak-31 Aralik 2007
Iran Bélgesi 9.898.522 31.596.693
Tiirkiye 196.389.702 218.505.136
Diger (*) 169.356 1.601.248
206.457.580 251.703.077

(*) iran Bolgesi disinda yapilan satislar gostermektedir.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.24 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont'd)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)
Net Realizable Value (“NRV”) (cont'd)

According to the market analysis performed for the 27.359.520,16 TRY Hyundai vehicle inventory held by the Company as of 31 December
2008, it has been estimated that the inventory will be sold at profit depending on the increase in the foreign exchange rate and inflation
after June 2009, therefore the net realizable value will be above the cost and as a result, no impairment loss provision has been provided
for. In the following months in which the sale is planned to be consummated, in the case 1 US Dollar falls below TRY 1,46, that the
inflation decreases significantly and depending on the market conditions, there is a probability that the net realizable value will be
below the cost and that there will be an impairment loss on inventory held as of 31 December 2008.

3.SEGMENT REPORTING

Considering the fact that the Company's risks and returns are affected by the industrial developments rather than the geographical
regions, the Management of the Company decided to use the industrial regions as the first degree segment reporting format. Management
also decided that the Company operates under one segment considering that the Company operates in the automotive sector with no
other significant segment in terms of risks and returns. Since there is only one industrial segment, information on the first degree
segment has already been presented on the financial statements.

Since the first degree segment format of the Company is the industrial segment, details of the revenue recognized in the period based
on the geographical regions should be presented as the second degree segment reporting. Moreover, the export sales' of the Company
is higher than 10 percent of the total revenue, so the Company prepares geographical segment reporting.

1 January-31 December 2008 | 1 January-31 December 2007
Iran Region 9.898.522 31.596.693
Turkey 196.389.702 218.505.136
Other (*) 169.356 1.601.248

206.457.580 251.703.077

(*) Represents the sales made to locations other than Iran.
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(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikge Tiirk Lirasi (“TL”) olarak gosterilmistir.)

4. NAKIT VE NAKIT BENZERLERi

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
31 ARALIK 2008 TARIHI ITIBARIYLE FINANSAL TABLOLAR

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYII VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

4.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Cash 2.347 698
Banks
-demand deposits 2.658.110 443.665
-time deposits with maturities less than three months 4.049.201 400.177
Total 6.709.658 844.540

Details of time deposits are as follows:

31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Kasa 2.347 698
Banka
- vadesiz mevduat 2.658.110 443.665
- vadesi li¢ aydan kisa vadeli mevduatlar 4.049.201 400.177
Toplam 6.709.658 844.540
Vadeli mevduatlarin dokiimii asagidaki gibidir:
31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Tutar Yillik Faiz Orani Tutar Yillik Faiz Orani
(TL Karsiligr) (%) (TL Karsiligr) (%)
TL 1.084.000 14-14,75 400.177 16,00
EUR 2.965.201 3
Toplam 4.049.201 400.177

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Amount Interest rate Amount Interest rate
(in TRY) (%) (in TRY) (%)
TRY 1.084.000 14-14,75 400.177 16,00
EUR 2.965.201 3
Total 4,049.201 400.177

5. FINANSAL YATIRIMLAR

31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihleri itibariyle satilmaya hazir finansal yatinmlar asagidaki gibidir :

5. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Details of the available-for-sale financial assets as of 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Hisse Hisse

Orani 31 Aralik 2008 Orani 31 Aralik 2007
Satilmaya hazir finansal varliklar % %
Borsada islem gormeyen
Bosen Enerji A.S. <1 2.114 <1 2114

Share 31 December 2008 Share 31 December 2007
Available-for-sale financial assets % %
Not publicly traded
Bosen Enerji A.S. <1 2.114 <1 2.114

OPERATIONS
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6. FINANSAL BORCLAR

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

6. FINANCIAL BORROWINGS

OPERATIONS

31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Kisa vadeli banka kredileri 156.036.017 1.056.547
TL Faktoring Borglari (bakiniz Not 7a) 71.412.332
Uzun vadeli finansal borglar 153.650 39.223.182
Toplam finansal borglar 227.601.999 40.279.729
31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Banka kredileri 155.712.060 39.677.126
TL Faktoring Borglari 71.412.332
Tiirkiye Teknoloji Gelistirme Vakfi kredisi  (“TTGV”) 477.607 602.603
227.601.999 40.279.729
a) Kisa Vadeli Finansal Borglar
31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Déviz TL Faiz Déviz TL Faiz
Tutari Karsiligi Orant (%) Tutari Karsiligi Orani (%)
Kisa vadeli krediler
TL krediler 105.950.453 | 24,68-33,44
EUR krediler 23.244.398 | 49.761.606 7,9187 473.011 808.944 7,34
ABD Dolari krediler 214.215 323.958 212.589 247.603
TL Faktoring Borglari 71.412.332 26,7
Toplam 227.448.349 1.056.547
a) Uzun Vadeli Finansal Borglar
31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Déviz TL Faiz Déviz TL Faiz
Tutan Karsiligi Orani (%) Tutarn Karsiligi Orani (%)
Uzun vadeli krediler
EUR krediler (¥) 22.727.273 | 38.868.182 7,34
ABD Dolari krediler (**) 101.600 153.650 304.800 355.000
Toplam 153.650 39.223.182

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Short-term bank loans 156.036.017 1.056.547
TRY Factoring payables (see Note 7a) 71.412.332
Long-term borrowings 153.650 39.223.182
Total financial borrowings 227.601.999 40.279.729
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Bank loans 155.712.060 39.677.126
TRY Factoring payables 71.412.332
Loan from Tiirkiye Teknoloji Gelistirme Vakfi (“TTGV”) 477.607 602.603

227.601.999 40.279.729
a) Short-term Borrowings

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Cﬁ?:::ﬁ?y Ting Interest Cﬁ?:gﬁ?y in Interest
Amount rate (%) Amount TRY rate (%)
Short-term borrowings
Borrowings in TRY 105.950.453 | 24,68-33,44
Borrowings in EUR 23.244.398 49.761.606 7,9187 473.011 808.944 7,34
Borrowings in US Dollar 214.215 323.958 212.589 247.603
TRL Factoring payables 71.412.332 26,7
Total 227.448.349 1.056.547
a) Long-term Borrowings
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
cﬁ?:gﬁgy Ti IQY Interest Cﬁ?;gﬁgy in Interest
Amount rate (%) Amount TRY rate (%)
Long-term borrowings
Borrowings in EUR (*) 22.727.273 | 38.868.182 7,34
Borrowings in US Dollar (**) 101.600 153.650 304.800 355.000

Total 153.650 39.223.182
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6. FINANSAL BORCLAR (devami)

Banka kaynakli uzun vadeli finansal borglarin geri 6deme vadeleri asagidaki gibidir:

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
1-2 yilicerisinde 6denecekler - 7.773.636
2 - 3 yilicerisinde 6denecekler - 15.547.273
3 - 4 yilicerisinde 6denecekler 15.547.273
- 38.868.182

(*) 31.12.2008 itibariyle tahakkuk eden faizi dahil 23.244.398 EUR (49.761.606 TL tutarindaki banka kredisi degisken faiz oranindan
(Euribor + % 2,75) olusmakta ve Sirket'i nakit akimi faiz orani riskine maruz birakmaktadir. Kredinin anapara taksit ve faiz 6demeleri
altr ayda bir olmak lizere Mart ve Eyliil aylarinda yapilmaktadir. Kredinin ilk anapara taksit demesi Eyliil 2009'da yapilacaktir. Bu
kredi, sabit kiymetler iizerindeki EUR 50.000.000 (107.040.000 TL) tutarindaki ipotek ile giivence altina alinmistir.

Banka kredi s6zlesmesi hiikiimleri:

Sirket'in yukarida agiklamasi verilen banka kredisi uyulmasi gereken sézlesme hiikiimlerine tabidir. S6z konusu hiikiimler uyarinca,
Sirket tarafindan birtakim performans kriterlerinin gerceklestirilmesi gerekmektedir. Sirket, 31 Aralik 2008 itibariyle tahakkuk eden
faiz dahil 23.244.398 EUR tutarindaki kismini kullandigi, 50.000.000 EUR toplam limitli kredi s6zlesmesindeki bor¢/6zkaynak orani
yukimluligiint yerine getirememistir.

Bahse konu sézlesme sartinin ihlali nedeniyle, banka, sézlesme sartlar geregi, mevcut 23.244.398 EUR tutarindaki kredi bakiyesinin
erken geri 6denmesini talep etmeye yetkilidir. Bu kapsamda, ilgili bor¢ bakiyesi tutari UMS 1 “Finansal Tablolarin Sunumu”
Standardi'nin 65. Paragrafi uyarinca kisa vadeli borglar altinda yeniden siniflandiriimistir.

Finansal tablolarin Yonetim Kurulu tarafindan onaylandig tarih itibariyle, banka, ilgili kredi borcunun geri 6denmesini talep
etmemistir. Sirket, 2009 yilinin ilk ceyreginde, banka ile kredi s6zlesmesi sartlarini yeniden goriisecektir.

Uzun vadeli TTGV kredisinin geri deme vadeleri asagidaki gibidir:

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
1- 2 yilicerisinde 6denecekler 153.650 236.667
2 - 3yilicerisinde 6denecekler - 118.333
153.650 355.000

(**) Ar-Ge projesi TTGV tarafindan da kredi anlaminda desteklenmistir. TTGV, 411-D35 nolu proje kapsaminda Mayis 2007'den
baslayarak yilda iki taksit olmak tizere 7 esit taksitte (3,5 yil) 6denecek olan 711.485 ABD Dolari tutarinda bir harcama destek
kredisi vermistir. Bu kredi faizsiz olup baslangicinda TTGV'ye % 6 komisyon édemesi yapilmistir.

Sirket'in borglarinin gercege uygun degeri, s6z konusu borglarin defter degerine yaklasik tutardadir. Finansal borglara iliskin risklerin
niteligi ve diizeyine iliskin agiklamalar Not 25'te verilmistir.
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6. FINANCIAL BORROWINGS (cont'd)

Analysis of total bank borrowings repayments is as follows:

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Between one to two years - 7.773.636
Between two to three years - 15.547.273
Between three to four years - 15.547.273
- 38.868.182

(*) Bank loans of EUR 23.244.398 (TRY 49.761.606) including the interest expense accrual are arranged at floating rates (Euribor
+2,75%) and expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The loan repayments are semi-annually in March and September.
The payment of the first installment of the principle amount will be performed in September 2009. This loan is secured by mortgage
of EUR 50.000.000 (TRY 107.040.000).

Covenants:

The Company's loan explained above is subject to covenant clauses. According to these clauses, the Company is required to meet
certain key performance indicators. The Company did not fulfill the debt/equity ratio as required in the contract for a credit line of
EUR 50.000.000 of which the Company has currently withdrawn an amount of EUR 23.244.398 including the interest expense
accrual.

Due to this breach of the covenant clause, the bank is contractually entitled to request early repayment of the outstanding amount
of EUR 23.244.398. Under these circumstances, the outstanding balance was reclassified as a current liability in accordance with
IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraph 65.

The bank has not requested early repayment of the loan as of the date when these financial statements were approved by the board
of directors. Management expects that a revised loan agreement will be in place during the first quarter of 2009.

Analysis of long-term TTGV loan repayments is as follows:

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Between one to two years 153.650 236.667
Between two to three years - 118.333
153.650 355.000

(**) The research and development project is supported by TTGV in terms of loan. TTGV, under the 411-D35 project, has provided
US Dollar 711.485 starting from May 2007. At the beginning of a period of 3,5 years and payment will be in 7 equal installments
which will be paid in twice in a year. This payment has no interest and at the beginning of the project, 6% commission fee was paid
to TTGV in advance.

The fair value of the Company's borrowings approximates their carrying amount. Disclosures on the nature and level of the risks
related to financial borrowings have been provided at Note 25.
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7.TiCARI ALACAK VE BORGCLAR

a) Ticari Alacaklar

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYii VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI O P E RA T I 0 N 5
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

7.TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

a) Trade Receivables

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ticari alacaklar 4.010.350 48.780.539
Faktoring sirketlerine devredilen ticari alacaklar 42.534.973
Alacak senetleri 12.328.336 28.742
Diger ticari alacaklar 83.682 12.831
58.957.341 48.822.112

Sirket'in, ticari alacaklarina uyguladigi standart vade 24 ile 60 giin arasindadir (31 Aralik 2007: 24 ile 60 giin). Ancak, s6z konusu
bu alacaklar faktoring firmasina devredilirken distribiitérlerden alinan ceklerle vade 5-6 aya kadar uzatilmaktadir.

Dénem icerisinde Sirket, iliskili olmayan faktoring sirketlerine ticari alacaklarinin bir kismini devretmistir. Devretme islemi sirasinda
Sirket, s6z konusu alacaklarla ilgili tahmini tahsil edilmeme riski icin faktoring sirketlerine kredi teminati vermistir. Dolayisiyla
Sirket, alacaklari defter degerleri ile bilangoda tutmaya devam etmis ve devire iliskin alinan nakit tutar da teminat altina alinmis
bir borg olarak muhasebelestirmistir (6. nota bakiniz). Raporlama tarihi itibariyle faktoring icin devredilen kisa vadeli alacak tutarinin
defter degeri 42.534.973 TL ve yiikiimliiliiglin defter degeri 71.412.332 TL'dir. Alacak tutarinin azalmasinin nedeni Sirket'in ana
distribiitoriine sattigi araglarin, distribiitor tarafindan Sirket'e iade edilmesine bagli olarak alacaklarindan tenzilidir.

S6z konusu distribiitor, faktoring firmasina devredilen alacaklarinin 15.5 Milyon TL'sini Ocak 2009 icerisinde 6deyemediginden

faktoring firmasi bu alacaklari Sirket'e riicu etmistir. 25 Ocak 2009 tarihinde distribiitorle distribiitorliik anlasmasi sona erdirilmis
olup bu firma ile tiim alacaklarin tahsil vadelerini yeniden belirleyen bir protokol diizenlenmistir.

a) Ticari Borglar

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ticari borglar 54.745.320 35.876.552
Eksi: borg reeskontu (107.564) (212.360)
Toplam 54.637.756 35.664.192

Sirketin ticari borglarina iliskin ortalama 6deme vadesi 37 giindiir (31 Aralik 2007: 37 giindiir).

Sirket herhangi bir faiz 6demesine maruz kalmamistir.

Ticari borglara iliskin risklerin niteligi ve diizeyine iliskin aciklamalar Not 25'te verilmistir.

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Trade receivables 4.010.350 48.780.539
Receivables transferred to factoring companies 42.534.973 -
Notes receivable 12.328.336 28.742
Other trade receivables 83.682 12.831
58.957.341 48.822.112

The Company's standard credit period of its trade receivables is between 24 and 60 days (31 December 2007: between 24 and 60
days). However, this period is increased up to 5-6 months by cheques received from distributors while these receivables are being
transferred to the factoring company.

During the period, the Company transferred a portion of its trade receivables to a factoring company. As part of the transfer, the
Company provided the transferee a credit guarantee over the expected losses of those receivables. Accordingly, the Company
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the cash received on the transfer as a secured
borrowing (see note 6). At the reporting date, the carrying amount of the transferred short-term receivables is TRY 42.534.973 and
the carrying amount of the associated liability is TRY 71.412.332. The reason for the decrease in trade receivables is due to the
return of the vehicles sold by the Company to the main distributor.

TRY 15.5 Million of the receivables which were transferred to the factoring company have been revoked to the Company since the
above mentioned distributor was not be able to pay this amount in January 2009. At 25 January 2009, the distributorship agreement
with this distributor has been ceased and a new protocol has been signed which reestablishes the maturities of the total recievables
from this entity.

a) Trade Payables

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Trade payables 54.745.320 35.876.552
Less: discount on payables (107.564) (212.360)
Total 54.637.756 35.664.192

The Company's average payment period for its trade payables is 37 days (31 December 2007: 37 days).
The Company was not exposed to any interest payments.

Disclosures on the nature and level of the risks related to trade payables have been provided at Note 25.
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8. DIGER ALACAK VE BORCLAR
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8.0THER CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Kisa Vadeli Bor¢ Karsiliklari

a) Provisions for Short-term Liabilities

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Garanti giderleri karsiligi (*) 3.773.830 1.801.206
Satis iskontolari karsiligi 3.482.971
Diger 363.785 143.404
Toplam 7.620.586 1.944.610
Garanti giderleri karsiigi (*)

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
1 Ocak tarihi itibariyle bakiye 1.801.206 838.366
Muhasebelestirilen ilave karsiliklar 4.509.362 3.971.704
Odemelerden kaynaklanan azalmalar (2.536.738) (3.008.864)
Toplam 3.773.830 1.801.206
9. STOKLAR

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
ilk madde ve malzeme 39.198.834 12.181.318
Yari mamiiller 2.834.993 3.567.854
Mamiiller 100.636.984 916.343
Ticari mallar 2.964.472 1.839.482
Mamul stok deger diisiis karsiligi
Yoldaki mallar 13.735.260 8.013.272

159.370.543 26.518.269

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Guarantee claims accrual (*) 3.773.830 1.801.206
Provision for sales discounts 3.482.971
Other 363.785 143.404
Total 7.620.586 1.944.610
(*) Guarantee claims accrual

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Balance as of 1 January 1.801.206 838.366
Additions: Recorded provisions 4.509.362 3.971.704
Disposals due to the payments (2.536.738) (3.008.864)
Total 3.773.830 1.801.206
9. INVENTORIES

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Raw materials 39.198.834 12.181.318
Work-in-progress 2.834.993 3.567.854
Finished goods 100.636.984 916.343
Trade goods 2.964.472 1.839.482
Provision for finished goods
Goods-in-transit 13.735.260 8.013.272

159.370.543 26.518.269

251.524.299 TL (2007: 187.647.921 TL) tutarindaki stoklarin maliyeti, satilan malin maliyeti hesabi icerisinde giderlestirilmistir.

Inventory costs worth TRY 251.524.299 (2007: TRY 187.647.921) is written off in the cost of sales account.
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10. MADDI DURAN VARLIKLAR

31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle sona eren dénem icindeki maddi varlik ve ilgili birikmis amortismanlara iliskin hareket
tablosu asagidaki gibidir:

Arazive Yeralti ve Tesis, Diger Yapilmakta
Arsalar Yeriistii Binalar Makinave | Tasitlar |Demirbaslar| Maddi Olan Toplam
Diizenleri Cihazlar Varliklar Yatirmlar

Maliyet degeri
1 Ocak 2008 agilis bakiyesi 6.561.271| 8.557.114 | 49.760.830 (172.901.787 | 998.268 | 8.939.136 | 5.182.404 3.783.357 |256.684.167
Alimlar - 48.703 - 3.388.234| 164.840 | 1.121.901 90.995 | 21.024.297 | 25.838.970
Cikislar - - - (1.192.637) | (616.155) |  (92.634) - -] (1.901.426)
Transferler 1.029.069 | 5.603.679 3.168.926 - | 2.140.209 520.000 ((12.461.883) -

31 Aralik 2008 kapanis bakiyesi | 6.561.271| 9.634.886 | 55.364.509 |178.266.310| 546.953 |12.108.612 | 5.793.399 | 12.345.771|280.621.711

Birikmis amortismanlar

1 Ocak 2008 acllis bakiyesi -| 2.600.982 | 15.419.974 (140.942.383| 510.675 | 6.819.346 | 868.054 -1167.161.414
Dénem gideri - 352.619 | 2.003.785| 8.007.390| 122.620 668.177 | 1.018.463 -| 12.173.054
Cikislar - - -] (1.188.744) | (246.913) |  (50.454) - -] (1.486.117)
31 Aralik 2008 kapanis bakiyesi -| 2.953.601 | 17.423.759 [147.761.029| 386.382 | 7.437.069 | 1.886.517 -1177.848.357

31 Aralik 2008 itibariyle
Net Defter Degeri 6.561.271| 6.681.285 | 37.940.750 | 30.505.281| 160.571 | 4.671.543 | 3.906.882 | 12.345.771 (102.773.354

31 Aralik 2007 itibariyle
Net Defter Degeri 6.561.271| 5.956.132 | 34.340.856 | 31.959.404| 487.593 | 2.119.790 | 4.314.350 3.783.357 | 89.522.753

31 Aralik 2007 tarihi itibariyle sona eren donem icindeki maddi varlik ve ilgili birikmis amortismanlara iliskin hareket
tablosu asagidaki gibidir:

Arazive Yeralti ve Tesis, Diger Yapilmakta
Arsalar Yeriistii Binalar Makinave | Tasitlar |Demirbaslar] Maddi Olan Toplam
Diizenleri Cihazlar Varliklar Yatirimlar

Maliyet degeri
1 Ocak 2007 agilis bakiyesi 6.561.271| 8.400.313 | 49.760.830 |173.371.013| 932.686 | 8.299.110 | 841.408 575.822 |248.742.453
Alimlar - 43.248 - 895.756| 112.025 843.213 | 402.747 | 11.739.974 | 14.036.963
Cikislar - - -| (5.365.463) | (46.443) | (368.087) - (315.256) | (6.095.249)
Transferler 113.553 -| 4.000.481 - 164.900 | 3.938.249 | (8.217.183) -

31 Aralik 2007 kapanis bakiyesi | 6.561.271| 8.557.114 | 49.760.830 |172.901.787 | 998.268 | 8.939.136 | 5.182.404 | 3.783.357 [256.684.167

Birikmis amortismanlar

1 Ocak 2007 acilis bakiyesi -| 2.261.312 | 13.429.540 [138.325.220| 353.384 | 6.456.506 | 465.988 -1161.291.950
Donem gideri - 339.670 | 1.990.434 | 7.932.010| 178.166 722.437 | 402.066 -| 11.564.783
Cikislar - - -| (5.314.847)| (20.875) | (359.597) - -| (5.695.319)
31 Aralik 2007 kapanis bakiyesi -| 2.600.982 | 15.419.974 {140.942.383| 510.675 | 6.819.346 | 868.054 -1167.161.414

31 Aralik 2007 itibariyle
Net Defter Degeri 6.561.271| 5.956.132 | 34.340.856 | 31.959.404| 487.593 | 2.119.790 | 4.314.350 3.783.357 | 89.522.753

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYII VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OPERATIONS

Below is the movement for property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation for the period ended

31 December 2008:

Land o Machinery . Furniture Other Const.ruction
Land | Buildings and Vehicles tangible -in- Total
improvements . and fixtures
equipment fixed assets| progress
Acquisition cost
Opening balance at 1 January 2008 |6.561.271| 8.557.114 | 49.760.830 |172.901.787 | 998.268 | 8.939.136 | 5.182.404 3.783.357 |256.684.167
Additions - 48.703 -| 3.388.234| 164.840 | 1.121.901 90.995 | 21.024.297 | 25.838.970
Disposals - - (1.192.637) | (616.155) (92.634) - -| (1.901.426)
Transfers -| 1.029.069 | 5.603.679 | 3.168.926 2.140.209 520.000 |(12.461.883) -
Closing balance at 31 December 2008(6.561.271 | 9.634.886 | 55.364.509 |178.266.310 | 546.953 |12.108.612 | 5.793.399 | 12.345.771|280.621.711
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance at 1 January 2008 -| 2.600.982 | 15.419.974 (140.942.383 | 510.675 | 6.819.346 | 868.054 -167.161.414
Charge for the period - 352.619 | 2.003.785 | 8.007.390| 122.620 668.177 | 1.018.463 -| 12.173.054
Disposals - - - | (1.188.744) | (246.913) (50.454) -| (1.486.111)
Closing balance at 31 December 2008 -| 2.953.601 | 17.423.759 |147.761.029 | 386.382 | 7.437.069 | 1.886.517 -1177.848.357
Net book value as at
31 December 2008 6.561.271| 6.681.285 | 37.940.750 | 30.505.281| 160.571 | 4.671.543 | 3.906.882 | 12.345.771|102.773.354
Net book value as at
31 December 2007 6.561.271| 5.956.132 | 34.340.856 | 31.959.404| 487.593 | 2.119.790 | 4.314.350 3.783.357 | 89.522.753
Below is the movement for property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation for the period ended
31 December 2007:
Land o Machinery . Furniture Other Const.ruction
Land |. Buildings and Vehicles tangible -in- Total
improvements . and fixtures
equipment fixed assets| progress
Acquisition cost
Opening balance at 1January 2007 |6.561.271| 8.400.313 | 49.760.830 [173.371.013| 932.686 | 8.299.110 | 841.408 575.822 (248.742.453
Additions - 43.248 - 895.756| 112.025 843.213 | 402.747 | 11.739.974| 14.036.963
Disposals - - (5.365.463) | (46.443) | (368.087) - (315.256) | (6.095.249)
Transfers - 113.553 - |  4.000.481 164.900 | 3.938.249 | (8.217.183) -
Closing balance at 31 December 2007|6.561.271 | 8.557.114 | 49.760.830 (172.901.787 | 998.268 | 8.939.136 | 5.182.404 3.783.357 |256.684.167
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance at 1)anuary 2007 -| 2.261.312 | 13.429.540 (138.325.220| 353.384 | 6.456.506 | 465.988 -1161.291.950
Charge for the period - 339.670 | 1.990.434 | 7.932.010| 178.166 722.437 | 402.066 -| 11.564.783
Disposals - - -| (5.314.847) | (20.875) | (359.597) -1 (5.695.319)
Closing balance at 31 December 2007 -| 2.600.982 | 15.419.974 |140.942.383 | 510.675 | 6.819.346 | 868.054 -1167.161.414
Net book value as at
31 December 2007 6.561.271| 5.956.132 | 34.340.856 | 31.959.404 | 487.593 | 2.119.790 | 4.314.350 3.783.357 | 89.522.753
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11. MADDI OLMAYAN DURAN VARLIKLAR

31 Aralik 2008 ve 2007 tarihleri itibariyle sona eren dénem icindeki maddi olmayan varliklarin hareket tablosu asagidaki
gibidir:

Kullanimda olan
Bilgisayar urlinler icin
Programlari aktiflesen gelistirme Toplam
maliyetleri
Maliyet degeri
1 Ocak 2008 acilis bakiyesi 4.912.098 9.794.231 14.706.329
Alimlar 102.507 15.342 117.849
Cikislar - (1.898.238) (1.898.238)
Transferler 266.341 254.150 520.491
31 Aralik 2008 kapanis bakiyesi 5.280.946 8.165.485 13.446.431
itfa paylan
1 Ocak 2008 agilis bakiyesi 3.433.587 1.994.207 5.427.794
Donem gideri 950.356 840.661 1.791.017
Cikislar - (332.192) (332.192)
31 Aralik 2008 kapanis bakiyesi 4.383.943 2.502.676 6.886.619
31 Aralik 2008 itibariyle Net Defter Degeri 897.003 5.662.809 6.559.812
31 Aralik 2007 itibariyle Net Defter Degeri 1.478.511 7.800.024 9.278.535
Kullanimda olan
Bilgisayar triinlericin
Programlari aktiflesen gelistirme Toplam
maliyetleri

Maliyet degeri
1 Ocak 2007 agilis bakiyesi 4.765.258 8.410.939 13.176.197
Alimlar 146.840 - 146.840
Transferler - 1.383.292 1.383.292
31 Aralik 2007 kapanis bakiyesi 4.912.098 9.794.231 14.706.329
itfa paylar
1 Ocak 2007 agilis bakiyesi 2.631.019 1.134.468 3.765.487
Donem gideri 802.568 859.739 1.662.307
31 Aralik 2007 kapanis bakiyesi 3.433.587 1.994.207 5.427.794
31 Aralik 2007 itibariyle Net Defter Degeri 1.478.511 7.800.024 9.278.535

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

OPERATIONS

Below is the movement of the intangiible assets for the periods ended 31 December 2008 and 2007:

Computer

Capitalized

software development costs fotal
Acquisition cost
Opening balance at 1 January 2008 4.912.098 9.794.231 14.706.329
Additions 102.507 15.342 117.849
Disposals (1.898.238) (1.898.238)
Transfers 266.341 254.150 520.491
Closing balance at 31 December 2008 5.280.946 8.165.485 13.446.431
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance at 1 January 2008 3.433.587 1.994.207 5.427.794
Charge for the period 950.356 840.661 1.791.017
Disposals (332.192) (332.192)
Closing balance at 31 December 2008 4.383.943 2.502.676 6.886.619
Net book value as at 31 December 2008 897.003 5.662.809 6.559.812
Net book value as at 31 December 2007 1.478.511 7.800.024 9.278.535

Computer Capitalized

software development costs fotal
Acquisition cost
Opening balance at 1 January 2007 4.765.258 8.410.939 13.176.197
Additions 146.840 146.840
Transfers 1.383.292 1.383.292
Closing balance at 31 December 2007 4.912.098 9.794.231 14.706.329
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance at 1 January 2007 2.631.019 1.134.468 3.765.487
Charge for the period 802.568 859.739 1.662.307
Closing balance at 31 December 2007 3.433.587 1.994.207 5.427.794
Net book value as at 31 December 2007 1.478.511 7.800.024 9.278.535
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12. DEVLET TESVIiK VE YARDIMLARI
Yatirim Tesvik Belgeleri

31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle 20.08.2008 tarih ve 91560 numarali tesvik belgesi bulunmaktadir. ilgili tesvik belgesi,
36.137.072 TL tutarinda olup Tevsi - Modernizasyon - Uriin Cesitlendirme yatinmlari icin alinmistir.

Sézkonusu yatinm tesvik belgesi kapsaminda saglanan imkanlar asagidaki gibidir:

- ithal edilen makine ve techizatlarla ilgili %100 giimriik muafiyeti.
- KDV istisnasi.

13. KARSILIKLAR, KOSULLU VARLIK VE YUKUMLULUKLER

31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihleri itibariyle Sirket'in vermis oldugu teminat mektubu ve teminat senetlerinin
dokiimii asagidaki gibidir:

31 Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007

Giimriik miidurliiklerine, vergi dairesine ve diger kamu kuruluslarina
verilen teminat mektuplari : TL 7.097.726 5.248.174

Diger

31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle hammadde ve malzeme alimi i¢in agilmis bulunan fakat fiili ithalati gerceklesmemis akreditif
tutari 455.343 TL (31 Aralik 2007: 16.037.468 TL)'dir.

Sirket kullanmis oldugu uzun vadeli kredi ¢cercevesinde, sabit kiymetleri {izerinde 50.000.000 Euro'luk ipotek vermistir.

14. CALISANLARA SAGLANAN FAYDALAR

Yiiriirliikteki Is Kanunu hiikiimleri uyarinca, ¢alisanlardan kidem tazminatina hak kazanacak sekilde is sézlesmesi sona erenlere,
hak kazandiklari yasal kidem tazminatlarinin ddenmesi yiikiimliligi vardir. Ayrica, halen yiiriirliikte bulunan 506 sayili Sosyal
Sigortalar Kanununun 6 Mart 1981 tarih, 2422 sayili ve 25 Agustos 1999 tarih, 4447 sayili yasalar ile degisik 60'inci maddesi
hiikmii geregince kidem tazminatini alarak isten ayrilma hakki kazananlara da yasal kidem tazminatlarini 6deme ytikiimliiliigii
bulunmaktadir. 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle 6denecek kidem tazminati, aylik 2.173,18 TL (31 Aralik 2007: 2.030,19 TL)
tavanina tabidir.

Kidem tazminati yiikiimliilugii yasal olarak herhangi bir fonlamaya tabi degildir.

Kidem tazminati yiikiimlilugt, sirketin calisanlarin emekli olmasindan dogan gelecekteki olasi yiikiimliliigiin bugiinkii degerinin
tahminine gore hesaplanir. UMS 19 (“Calisanlara Saglanan Faydalar”), sirketin yiikiimliiliiklerini tanimlanmis fayda planlan
kapsaminda aktiieryal degerleme ydntemleri kullanilarak gelistirilmesini 6ngdriir. Buna uygun olarak, toplam yiikiimliiliiklerin
hesaplanmasinda kullanilan aktiieryal varsayimlar asagida belirtilmistir:

Esas varsayim, her hizmet yili i¢in olan azami yiikiimluliigiin enflasyona paralel olarak artmasidir. Dolayisiyla, uygulanan iskonto
orani, gelecek enflasyon etkilerinin diizeltilmesinden sonraki beklenen reel orani ifade eder. 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle, ekli
mali tablolarda karsiliklar, ¢alisanlarin emeklili§inden kaynaklanan gelecege ait olasi yiikiimliiltigiiniin bugiinkii degeri tahmin
edilerek hesaplanir. 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle karsiliklar yillik %5,40 enflasyon orani ve %12 iskonto orani varsayimina
gore, %6,26 reel iskonto orani ile hesaplanmistir (31 Aralik 2007: %5,71 reel iskonto oran). istege bagli isten ayrilmalar
neticesinde 6denmeyip, Sirket'e kalacak olan kidem tazminati tutarlarinin tahmini orani da dikkate alinmistir. Kidem tazminati
tavani alti ayda bir revize olup, Sirket'in kidem tazminati karsiliginin hesaplanmasinda 1 Temmuz 2008 tarihinden itibaren gecerli
olan 2.173,18 TL olan tavan tutari g6z dniine alinmistir. 31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihinde sona eren donemler icin
kidem tazminati karsiiginin hareket tablosu asagidaki gibidir:
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12. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES
Investment Incentive Certificates

As of 31 December 2008, the Company has an investment incentive certificate numbered 91560 dated 20 August 2008.
This investment incentive certificate is for an amount TRY 36.137.072 and has been acquired for the investments of
Extension - Modernization - Product Differentiaton.

Below are the details of the advantages enabled by the investment incentive certificates:

- 100% customs exemption related to imported machinery and equipments
- VAT exemption

13. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 commitments and contingencies are as follows:

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007

Letters of guarantee given to customs, tax authorities, and other
public corporations TRY 7.097.726 5.248.174

Other

The Company has letters of credit amounting to TRY 455.343 as of 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: TRY 16.037.468)
which have been opened for the purchases of raw materials and supplies which have not yet been imported.

The Company has given EUR 50.000.000 of mortgage on the property, plant and equipment in line with the requirements
of the long-term loan used.

14. EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Under Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment termination benefits to each employee who has Under
the Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment termination benefits to each employee who has qualified
for such payment. Also, employees are entitled to retirement pay provisions subsequent to the completion of their retirement
period by gaining a right to receive retirement payments in accordance with the amended Article of 60 the applicable Social
Insurance Law No: 506 and the related Decrees No: 2422 and 4447 issued on 6 March 1981 and 25 August 1999, respectively.
The amount payable consists of one month's salary limited to a maximum of TRY 2.173,18 for each period of service at

31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: TRY 2.030,19).

The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company arising
from the retirement of employees. I1AS 19 (“Employee Benefits”) requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to
estimate the enterprise's obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used
in the calculation of the total liability:

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with inflation. Thus, the
discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated effects of future inflation. Consequently,
in the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2008, the provision has been calculated by estimating the present
value of the future probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the employees. The provisions at the
respective balance sheet dates have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of 5,4 % and a discount rate of 12%,
resulting in a real discount rate of approximately 6,26% (31 December 2007: 5.71%). The anticipated rate of forfeitures is
considered. As the maximum liability is revised semi annually, the maximum amount of TRY 2,173.18 effective as of 1 July 2008
has been taken into consideration in calculation of provision from employment termination benefits.
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14. CALISANLARA SAGLANAN FAYDALAR (devami) 14. EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (contd)
1 Ocak 2008 - 31 Aralik 2008 | 1 Ocak 2007 - 31 Aralik 2007 1 January 2008 - 31 December 2008 | 1 January 2007 - 31 December 2007

1 Ocak itibariyle karsilik 1.738.386 1.271.671 Provision at 1 January 1.738.386 1.271.671
Hizmet maliyeti 832.003 629.014 Service cost 832.003 629.014
Faiz maliyeti 227.018 206.268 Interest cost 227.018 206.268
Donem iginde 6denen (928.354) (368.567) Retirement pay paid (928.354) (368.567)
Donem sonu karsilik 1.869.053 1.738.386 Provision at 31 December 1.869.053 1.738.386
15. DIGER VARLIK VE YOKUMLULUKLER 15. OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Diger Donen Varliklar a) Other Current Assets

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Verilen siparis avanslari 1.061.407 5.707.975 Order advances given 1.061.407 5.707.975
Pesin 6denen giderler 1.247.049 979.115 Prepaid expenses 1.247.049 979.115
Devreden KDV 20.592.835 VAT carried forward 20.592.835
Diger KDV 5.240 687.465 Other VAT 5.240 687.465
Gelir tahakkuklari 561.395 93.364 Income accruals 561.395 93.364
Diger 275.468 650 Other 275.468 650
Toplam 23.743.394 7.468.569 Total 23.743.394 7.468.569
b) Diger Duran Varliklar b) Other Long-term Assets

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Verilen sabit kiymet avanslari 3.919.304 257.805 Advances given for property, plant and equipment 3.919.304 257.805
Verilen depozito ve teminatlar 286.629 201.127 Deposits and guarantees given 286.629 201.127
Gelecek yillara ait giderler 30.137 52.866 Prepaid expenses 30.137 52.866
Toplam 4.236.070 511.798 Total 4.236.070 511.798
¢) Diger Kisa Vadeli Yiikiimliiliikler ) Other Short-term Liabilities

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Odenecek diger vergi ve fonlar 628.175 1.733.954 Taxes and dues payable 628.175 1.733.954
Odenecek sosyal giivenlik primleri 632.789 728.452 Social security premiums payable 632.789 728.452
Senelik izin karsiligi 342.992 223.011 Unpaid vacation accrual 342.992 223.011
Personele borglar 823.372 610.369 Due to personnel 823.372 610.369
Gelecek aylara ait gelirler 3.751.303 163.446 Deferred income 3.751.303 163.446
Diger 424,591 778.601 Other 424.591 778.601
Toplam 6.603.222 4.237.833 Total 6.603.222 4.237.833
d) Diger Uzun Vadeli Yiikiimliiliikler d) Other Long-term Liabilities

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Gelecek yillara ait gelirler (Tiibitak ar-ge yardimi) 753.646 Income accruals (Tiibitak R&D support) 753.646
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16. GZKAYNAKLAR
a) Sermaye

Sirket'in 31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihlerindeki hissedarlari ve sermaye icindeki paylari tarihi degerlerle asagidaki gibidir:

31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
Hisse (%) TL Hisse (%) TL
Kiraga Holding A.S. 52,36 52.360.334 52,36 52.360.334
Diniz Grubu 12,52 12.517.600 12,52 12.517.600
inan Kirag 2,25 2.253.379 2,25 2.253.379
Diger 32,87 32.868.687 32,87 32.868.687
Toplam 100,00 100.000.000 100,00 100.000.000

Sirket'in sermayesi 950.000.000 adet A grubu ve 9.050.000.000 adet B grubu hisseden olusmaktadir,
(2007 yili: 950.000.000 adet A grubu ve 9.050.000.000 adet B grubu).

Sirket Ana Mukavelesi'nin 8. Maddesi ile (A) Grubu hisse senedi sahiplerine, Yonetim Kurulu'na secilecek yedi azadan besi
A Grubu hisse senedi sahiplerinin gosterecegi adaylar arasindan secilmesi imtiyazi taninmistir.

Tertip Grup Yénetim Kurulu Seciminde imtiyaz
142+3+4+5+6 A Madde No: 8

b) Kardan Ayrilan Kisitlanmis Yedekler

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007

Yasal Yedekler 1.029.833 1.029.833

Yasal Yedekler

Yasal yedekler Tiirk Ticaret Kanunu'na gére ayrilan birinci ve ikinci tertip yasal yedeklerden olusmaktadir. Birinci tertip yasal
yedekler, tiim yedekler tarihi (enflasyona gore endekslenmemis) 6denmis sermayenin %20'sine erisene kadar, gegmis dénem
ticari karinin yillik %5'i oraninda ayrilir. ikinci tertip yasal yedekler, birinci tertip yasal yedek ve temettiilerden sonra, tiim
nakdi temettii dagitimlari tizerinden yillik %10 oraninda ayrilir.

Sirket'in 64.560.015 TL tutarindaki ge¢mis yil zararlari, 31 Aralik 2008 tarihli bilangosunda ge¢mis yil zararlari icerisinde
siniflanmistir (31 Aralik 2007: 21.173.711TL)

Sirket'in ayrica birikmis karlar icerisinde siniflandirilan olaganiistii yedekleri 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle 7.790.901 TL
(31 Aralik 2007: 7.790.901 TL)"dir.
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16. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
a) Paid-in Capital

The composition of the Company's paid-in share capital as of 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 is as follows:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Share (%) TRY Share (%) TRY
Kiraca Holding A.S. 52,36 52.360.334 52,36 52.360.334
Diniz Grubu 12,52 12.517.600 12,52 12.517.600
inan Kirag 2,25 2.253.379 2,25 2.253.379
Other 32,87 32.868.687 32,87 32.868.687
Total 100,00 100.000.000 100,00 100.000.000

The company's share capital consists of 950.000.000 shares of Class A and 9.050.000.000 shares of Class B (2007: 950.000.000
shares of Class A and 9.050.000.000 shares of Class B).

In the Company's Articles of Association, article 8, a privilege has been given to the group (A) shareholders. According to the privilege,
five members (out of seven) of Board of Directors will be elected among the proposed candidates by group (A) shareholders.

Tier Group Privilege on BOD election
14243+4+5+6 A Article No: 8

b) Restricted Reserves Assorted from Profit

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Legal Reserves 1.029.833 1.029.833

Legal Reserves

Legal reserves comprise of first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code.
The first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve
reaches 20% of the historical paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated after the first legal reserve and
dividends, at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash dividend distributions.

TRY 64.560.015 of the accumulated losses of the Company has been classified under retained earnings on the balance sheet
as of 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: TRY 21.173.711).

In addition, extraordinary legal reserves of the Company classified under retained earnings amount to TRY 7.790.901 as of
31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: TRY 7.790.711).
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16. OZKAYNAKLAR (devami)
b) Kardan Ayrilan Kisitlanmis Yedekler (devami)

SPK'nin 1 Ocak 2008 tarihine kadar gegerli olan gereklilikleri uyarinca enflasyona gore diizeltilen ilk finansal tablo denklestirme isleminde
ortaya ¢ikan ve “ge¢mis yillar zarari”’nda izlenen tutar, SPK'nin kar dagitimina iliskin diizenlemeleri cercevesinde, enflasyona gore
diizeltilmis finansal tablolara gore dagitilabilecek kar rakami bulunurken indirim kalemi olarak dikkate alinmaktaydi. Bununla birlikte,
“Gegmis yillar zararlari”nda izlenen s6z konusu tutar, varsa donem kari ve dagitilmamis ge¢mis yil karlari, kalan zarar miktarinin ise
siraslyla olaganistii yedek akgeler, yasal yedek akgeler, 6zkaynak kalemlerinin enflasyon muhasebesine gore diizeltilmesinden
kaynaklanan sermaye yedeklerinden mahsup edilmesi miimkiin bulunmaktaydi.

Yine 1 Ocak 2008 tarihine kadar gecerli olan uygulama uyarinca, enflasyona gore diizeltilen ilk finansal tablo diizenlenmesi sonucunda
ozkaynak kalemlerinden “Sermaye, emisyon primi, Yasal yedekler, Statii yedekleri, Ozel yedekler ve Olaganiistii yedek” kalemlerine
bilangoda kayitli degerleri ile yer verilmekte ve bu hesap kalemlerinin diizeltilmis degerleri toplu halde 6zkaynak grubu icinde “Ozsermaye
enflasyon diizeltmesi farklar” hesabinda yer almaktaydi. Tiim 6zkaynak kalemlerine iligkin “Ozsermaye enflasyon diizeltmesi farklar”
sadece bedelsiz sermaye artirimi veya zarar mahsubunda, olaganistii yedeklerin kayitli degerleri ise, bedelsiz sermaye artirimi; nakit
kar dagitimi ya da zarar mahsubunda kullanilabilmekteydi.

1 Ocak 2008 itibariyle yiiriirliige giren Seri: XI, No: 29 sayili teblig ve ona agiklama getiren SPK duyurularina gére “Odenmis sermaye”,
“Kardan ayrilan kisitlanmis yedekler” ve “Hisse senedi ihrag primleri”'nin yasal kayitlardaki tutarlar tizerinden gtsterilmesi gerekmektedir.
S6z konusu tebligin uygulanmasi esnasinda degerlemelerde ¢ikan farkliliklarin (enflasyon diizeltmesinden kaynaklanan farliliklar gibi):

* “Odenmis sermaye”den kaynaklanmaktaysa ve heniiz sermayeye ilave edilmemisse, “Odenmis sermaye” kaleminden sonra
gelmek iizere acilacak “Sermaye diizeltmesi farklan” kalemiyle;

e “Kardan ayrilan kisitlanmis yedekler” ve “Hisse senedi ihra¢ primleri”'nden kaynaklanmakta ve heniiz kar dagitimi veya sermaye
artinmina konu olmamissa “Geg¢mis yillar kar/zararyla”,

iliskilendirilmesi gerekmektedir. Diger 6zkaynak kalemleri ise SPK Finansal Raporlama Standartlari cercevesinde degerlenen tutarlar
ile gosterilmektedir.

Sermaye diizeltmesi farklarinin sermayeye eklenmek disinda bir kullanimi yoktur.

Sermaye Piyasasi Kurulu'nun 8 Subat 2008 tarihli 4/138 sayili karari geregince 1 Ocak 2008 tarihinden itibaren gecerli olmak tizere
paylari borsada islem goren anonim ortakliklar i¢in, asgari kar dagitim orani %20 (31 Aralik 2007: %20) olarak uygulanacaktir. Buna
gore bu dagitimin sirketlerin genel kurullarinda alacaklari karara bagli olarak nakit ya da temettiiniin sermayeye eklenmesi suretiyle
ihrag edilecek paylarin bedelsiz olarak ortaklara dagitilmasina ya da belli oranda nakit, belli oranda bedelsiz pay dagitilmasi suretiyle
gerceklestirilebilmesine; belirlenecek birinci temettii tutarinin mevcut 6denmis/cikarilmis sermayelerinin %5'inden az olmasi durumunda,
s6z konusu tutarin dagitilmadan ortaklik biinyesinde birakilabilmesine imkan verilmis ancak bir 6nceki doneme iliskin temettii dagitimini
gerceklestirmeden sermaye artirimi yapan ve bu nedenle paylari "eski" ve "yeni" seklinde ayrilan anonim ortakliklardan, faaliyetleri
sonucunda elde ettikleri donem karindan temettii dagitacaklarin, hesaplayacaklari birinci temettiiyii nakden dagitilmalar zorunlulugu
getirilmistir.

Ayrica, 25 Subat 2005 tarih ve 7/242 sayili SPK karari uyarinca; SPK diizenlemelerine gére bulunan net dagitilabilir kar tizerinden
SPK'nin asgari kar dagitim zorunluluguna iliskin diizenlemeleri uyarinca hesaplanan kar dagitim tutarinin, tamaminin yasal kayitlarda
yer alan dagitilabilir kardan karsilanabilmesi durumunda, bu tutarin tamami, karsilanamamasi durumunda ise yasal kayitlarda yer alan
net dagitilabilir karin tamami dagitilacaktir. SPK diizenlemelerine gore hazirlanan finansal tablolarda veya yasal kayitlarin herhangi
birinde dénem zarari olmasi durumunda ise kar dagitimi yapilmayacaktir.

Kar Dagitimina Konu Edilebilecek Kaynaklar:

Sirket'in bilanco tarihi ititbariyle yasal kayitlarina bulunan ge¢mis yil zararlarinin diistilmesinden sonra bir dagitima konu edilebilecek
kaynagi bulunmamaktadir.
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16. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (cont’d)
b) Restricted Reserves Assorted from Profit (cont’d)

In accordance with the CMB's requirements which were effective until 1 January 2008, the amount generated from the first-time
application of inflation adjustments on financial statements, and followed under the “accumulated loss” item was taken into consideration
as a reduction in the calculation of profit distribution based on the inflation adjusted financial statements within the scope of the CMB's
regulation issued on profit distribution. The related amount that was followed under the “accumulated loss” item could also be offset
against the profit for the period (if any) and undistributed retained earnings and the remaining loss amount could be offset against
capital reserves arising from the restatement of extraordinary reserves, legal reserves and equity items, respectively.

In addition, in accordance with the CMB's requirements which were effective until 1 January 2008, at the first-time application of inflation
adjustments on financial statements, equity items, namely “Capital issue premiums”, “Legal reserves”, “Statutory reserves”, “Special
reserves” and “Extraordinary reserves” were carried at nominal value in the balance sheet and restatement differences of such items
were presented in equity under the “Shareholders' equity inflation restatement differences” line item in aggregate. “Shareholders'
equity inflation restatement differences” related to all equity items could only be subject to the capital increase by bonus issue or loss
deduction, while the carrying value of extraordinary reserves could be subject to the capital increase by bonus issue; cash profit

distribution or loss deduction.

However, in accordance with the CMB's Decree Volume: XI; No: 29 issued on 1 January 2008 and other related CMB's announcements,
“Paid-in capital”, “Restricted reserves” and “Premium in excess of par” should be carried at their registered amounts in statutory
records. Restatement differences (e.g. inflation restatement differences) arising from the application of the Decree should be associated
with:

e “Capital restatement differences” account, following the “Paid-in capital” line item in the financial statements, if such
differences are arising from “Paid-in Capital” and not added to capital;

o “Retained earnings/Accumulated loss”, if such differences are arising from “Restricted reserves” and “Premium in excess
of par” and has not been subject to profit distribution or capital increase.

Other equity items are carried at the amounts that are valued based on the CMB's Financial Reporting Standards.
Capital restatement differences can only be included in capital.

Based on the CMB's decree issued on 8 February 2008 number 4/138 for listed companies, minimum profit distribution rate shall be
applied as 20% for the year 2008 (31 December 2007: 20%). In accordance with this decree, depending on the decision made in general
shareholders' meeting, the profit distribution can be made either by giving bonus shares to shareholders which are issued either in
cash or by adding dividend to capital or giving some amount of cash and some amount of bonus shares to shareholders. If the primary
dividend amount determined is less than 5% of the paid-in capital, the Decree gives the option to not to distribute the related amount
and to keep it within the equity. However, for companies that have not made any dividend distributions in the prior period and therefore,
has classified their shares as “old shares” and “new shares” and those that will distribute dividends from the profit for the year obtained
from their activities, primary dividend amount shall be distributed in cash.

In addition, based on the CMB's decree issued on 25 February 2005 number 7/242, if the profit distribution calculated in accordance
with the CMB's minimum profit distribution requirement over the net profit distribution calculated based on the CMB's standards is
recovered in full from distributable profit presented in the statutory accounts, the related amount will be distributed fully, if not, net
distributable profit amount presented in the statutory accounts will be distributed fully. In case there is net loss for the period on the
financial statements prepared in accordance with Captial Market Board regulations or statutory financial statements, no profit distribution
will be performed.

Resources Available for Profit Distribution:

The Company does not have any resources available for profit distribution after the deduction of accumulated losses.
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16. OZKAYNAKLAR (devami)
¢) Hisse Senetleri ihrag Primleri

31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihleri itibariyle hisse senedi ihra¢ primleri asagidaki gibidir:

31 Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007

Hisse Senetleri ihrac Primleri 5.756.644 5.756.644

17. SATISLAR VE SATISLARIN MALIYETi

a) Net Satislar
Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim’den
Gecmis Gecmis
1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
Yurtici satislar 218.175.423 218.983.919
Yurtdisi satislar 10.339.482 33.197.941
Diger gelirler 560.730 214.571
Satis iadeleri () (15.862.163) (296.386)
Satis iskontolari (-) (6.755.892) (396.968)
206.457.580 251.703.077
a) Satislarin Maliyeti
Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim'den
Gecmis Gecmis
1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007

Hammadde kullanimi (251.524.299) | (187.647.921)

Direkt isgilik (11.706.101) (8.024.470)
Genel {iretim gideri (25.108.393) (16.087.671)
Amortisman (4.369.382) (3.764.716)
Yari mamul stogundaki degisim (733.040) 1.911.799

Bitmis mamul stogundaki degisim 99.702.744 (6.705.634)
Satilan ticari mal maliyeti (6.890.583) (5.742.056)
Calisilmayan kisim giderleri (6.853.019) (13.234.216)
(207.482.073) |(239.294.885)

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

16. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (cont’d)

c) Premiums in Excess of Par

Premiums in excess of par as 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 are as follows:

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Premiums in excess of par 5.756.644 5.756.644
17. SALES AND COST OF SALES
a) Net Sales
Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December| 31 December
2008 2007
Domestic sales 218.175.423 218.983.919
Export sales 10.339.482 33.197.941
Other revenues 560.730 214,571
Sales returns (-) (15.862.163) (296.386)
Satis discounts (-) (6.755.892) (396.968)
206.457.580 251.703.077
a) Cost of Sales
Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December| 31 December
2008 2007
Raw materials consumed (251.524.299) | (187.647.921)
Direct labor (11.706.101) (8.024.470)
Production overheads (25.108.393) (16.087.671)
Depreciation (4.369.382) (3.764.716)
Change in work-in-process inventories (733.040) 1.911.799
Change in finished goods 99.702.744 (6.705.634)
Cost of merchandises sold (6.890.583) (5.742.056)
Idle capacity expenses (6.853.019) (13.234.216)
(207.482.073) | (239.294.885)

OPERATIONS
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18. PAZARLAMA, SATIS VE DAGITIM GiDERLERI, GENEL YONETIM GIDERLERI

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

18. MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Bagimsiz Bagimsiz

Denetim'den Denetim'den

Gecmis Gecmis

1 Ocak-31 Aralik | 1 Ocak-31 Aralik

2008 2007
Satis ve pazarlama giderleri (7.265.292) (9.199.935)
Genel yonetim giderleri (13.124.559) (10.804.777)
Toplam (20.389.851) (20.004.712)

a) Satis ve Pazarlama Giderleri

Bagimsiz Bagimsiz

Denetim'den Denetim'den

Gecmis Gecmis

1 Ocak-31 Aralik | 1 Ocak-31 Aralik

2008 2007
Garanti giderleri (4.509.212) (3.008.864)
Personel giderleri (910.851) (669.467)
Amortisman gideri (244.200) (66.416)
Nakliye ve sigorta giderleri (208.666) (86.347)
Satis komisyon giderleri (65.640) (3.552.799)
Satis arastirma gelistirme giderleri (135.978) (83.150)
Reklam giderleri (51.712) (295.028)
Sergi ve fuar giderleri (36.495) (6.434)
Egitim giderleri (10.658) (5.758)
Enerji Giderleri (20.358) (97.214)
Taseronluk Giderleri (106.124) (149.717)
Kira Giderleri (190.334) (192.387)
ihale giderleri (4.102) (4.513)
Diger satis ve pazarlama giderleri (770.962) (981.841)
Toplam (7.265.292) (9.199.935)

Audited Audited

1 January- 1 January-

31 December| 31 December

2008 2007
Sales and marketing expenses (7.265.292) (9.199.935)
General administrative expenses (13.124.559) (10.804.777)
Total (20.389.851) (20.004.712)

a) Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses

Audited Audited

1 January- 1 January-

31 December| 31 December

2008 2007
Warranty expenses (4.509.212) (3.008.864)
Personnel expenses (910.851) (669.467)
Depreciation and amotization expenses (244.200) (66.416)
Transportation and insurance expenses (208.666) (86.347)
Sales commissions (65.640) (3.552.799)
Sales research development expenses (135.978) (83.150)
Advertising expenses (51.712) (295.028)
Exhibition and exposition expenses (36.495) (6.434)
Training expenses (10.658) (5.758)
Energy expenses (20.358) (97.214)
Subcontract work expenses (106.124) (149.717)
Rent expenses (190.334) (192.387)
Auction expenses (4.102) (4.513)
Other expenses (770.962) (981.841)
Total (7.265.292) (9.199.935)

OPERATIONS
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18. PAZARLAMA, SATIS VE DAGITIM GIDERLERI, GENEL YONETIM GiDERLERI (devami)

b) Genel Yonetim Giderleri

Bagimsiz Bagimsiz

Denetim'den Denetim'den

Gecmis Gegcmis

1 Ocak-31 Aralik | 1 Ocak-31 Aralik

2008 2007

Personel giderleri (5.834.273) (4.873.372)
Amortisman giderleri (1.513.178) (1.496.705)
Taseronluk giderleri (1.203.912) (505.318)
Holding hizmet giderleri (600.195) (423.750)
Enerji giderleri (391.732) (301.186)
Abonelik ve aidat giderleri (382.727) (273.007)
Kira giderleri (354.730) (188.940)
Dava takip ve miisavirlik giderleri (350.320) (306.016)
Egitim giderleri (252.904) (100.150)
Sigorta giderleri (295.289) (228.966)
Seyahat giderleri (265.448) (152.091)
Denetim giderleri (231.218) (235.498)
Vergi ve ceza (163.838) (154.834)
Genel kurul giderleri (101.229) (123.215)
Ulasim ve tasima giderleri (108.023) (131.943)
Mekanizasyon ve lisans giderleri (275.952)
Sermaye arttinm giderleri (180.000)
Diger genel yonetim giderleri (1.075.543) (853.834)
Toplam (13.124.559) (10.804.777)

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

18. MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (cont’d)

b) General Administrative Expenses

OPERATIONS

Audited Audited

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

2008 2007

Personnel expenses (5.834.273) (4.873.372)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (1.513.178) (1.496.705)
Subcontract work expenses (1.203.912) (505.318)
Holding expense participation (600.195) (423.750)
Energy expenses (391.732) (301.186)
Subscription and membership fee expenses (382.727) (273.007)
Rent expenses (354.730) (188.940)
Legal and consulting expenses (350.320) (306.016)
Training expenses (252.904) (100.150)
Insurance expenses (295.289) (228.966)
Travel expenses (265.448) (152.091)
Audit expenses (231.218) (235.498)
Tax and penalty expenses (163.838) (154.834)
Plenary committee expenses (101.229) (123.215)
Transportation expenses (108.023) (131.943)
Mechanical and license expenses (275.952)
Capital increase expenses (180.000)
Other expenses (1.075.543) (853.834)
Total (13.124.559) (10.804.777)
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19. DIGER FAALIYETLERDEN GELIR/GIDERLER

a) Diger Faaliyetlerden Gelir ve Karlar

Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim'den
Gegcmis Gecmis
1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
Arastirma, gelistirme destek primleri 914.685 156.233
Duran varlik satis kari 2.572.405 2.077.961
Mevduat Faiz Gelirleri 213.849 78.722
Alinan sigorta hasar tazminatlar 58.732 39.007
Diger 284.534 189.575
Toplam 4.044.205 2.541.498
b) Diger Faaliyetlerden Gider ve Zararlar
Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim'den
Gecmis Gecmis
1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
Maddi duran varlik satis zarari (23.792) (7.095)
Diger gider ve zararlar (331.603) (1.912)
Onceki dénem gider ve zararlar (15.535) (9.091)
Toplam (370.930) (18.098)
20. FINANSAL GELIRLER Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim'den
Gecmis Gecmis
1 Ocak-31 Aralik | 1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
Kambiyo karlari 12.833.295 4.744.248
Reeskont faiz gelirleri 4.949.255 3.301.016
Toplam finansal gelirler 17.782.550 8.045.264
21. FINANSAL GIDERLER
Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim'den
Gecmis Gecmis
1 0cak-31 Aralik | 1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
Kambiyo zararlari (10.953.134) (5.200.749)
Bor¢lanma maliyeti () (31.029.941) (7.951.590)
Faktoring Giderleri (6.078.059) (1.081.923)
Toplam finansal gelirler (48.061.134) (14.234.262)

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

19. OTHER OPERATING INCOME / EXPENSES

a) Other Operating Income

OPERATIONS

Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Research and development support premium 914.685 156.233
Gain on sale of intangible fixed assets 2.572.405 2.077.961
Interest income on time deposits 213.849 78.722
Insurance claim benefits received 58.732 39.007
Other 284.534 189.575
Total 4.044.205 2.541.498
b) Other Operating Expenses
Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets (23.792) (7.095)
Other expenses (331.603) (1.912)
Previous period expense and losses (15.535) (9.091)
Total (370.930) (18.098)
20. FINANCE INCOME
Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Foreign exchange gains 12.833.295 4.744.248
Discount income 4.949.255 3.301.016
Total finance income 17.782.550 8.045.264
21. FINANCE COSTS
Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Foreign exchange losses (10.953.134) (5.200.749)
Cost of borrowing () (31.029.941) (7.951.590)
Factoring expenses (6.078.059) (1.081.923)
Total finance costs (48.061.134) (14.234.262)
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22. VERGI VARLIK VE YUKUMLULUKLERI

Sirket, vergiye esas yasal mali tablolari ile SPK Muhasebe Standartlari'na gére hazirlanmis mali tablolari arasindaki farkliliklardan
kaynaklanan gecici zamanlama farklari igin ertelenmis vergi varligi ve yiikiimliligii muhasebelestirmektedir. S6z konusu farkliliklar
genellikle bazi gelir ve gider kalemlerinin vergiye esas mali tablolar ile SPK Muhasebe Standartlari'na gére hazirlanan mali tablolarda
farkli donemlerde yer almasindan kaynaklanmaktadir.

Ertelenmis vergi aktifleri ve pasiflerinin hesaplanmasinda kullanilan vergi orani %20'dir (2007: %20).

31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihleri itibariyle, ertelenen vergiye konu olan birikmis gecici farklar ve ertelenmis vergi varliklari ve
yiikiimliiliiklerinin etkileri, bilango tarihi itibariyle yasanmis vergi oranlari kullanilarak asagida 6zetlenmistir:

SPK Muhasebe Standartlarina gére
diizeltilmis mali tablolar ve vergiye Ertelenen vergi (yiikiimliiliigii) /varig:

esas mali tablolar arasindaki farklar: 31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007

Yeniden diizenleme ve maddi

varliklarin amortisman ve diger maddi

olmayan varliklarin itfa farklar (2.823.149) (3.434.164)
Diger (112.146) (26.663)
Ertelenen vergi yiikiimliiligii (2.935.295) (3.460.827)

SPK Muhasebe Standartlarina gore
diizeltilmis mali tablolar ve vergiye
esas mali tablolar arasindaki farklar:

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYii VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI O P E RA T I 0 N 5
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22. TAXASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising between its financial statements
as reported for “CMB” purposes and its statutory tax financial statements. These differences usually result in the recognition of revenue
and expenses in different reporting periods for “CMB” and tax purposes as stated below.

Tax rate applied on deferred tax assets and liabilities is 20% (2007: 20%).

Temporary differences subject to deferred tax and the effect of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007 are summarized below using the above tax rate applied:

Differences between the financial statements
as reported for “CMB” purposes and Deferred tax (liability)/asset
statutory tax financial statements 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Difference between tax base and

carrying value of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets (2.823.149) (3.434.164)
Other (112.146) (26.663)
Deferred tax liabilities (2.935.295) (3.460.827)

Differences between the financial statements
as reported for “CMB” purposes and statutory
tax financial statements

Vergiden mahsup edilecek

gecmis yil zararlar 18.148.435 14.899.252
Reel olmayan finansman maliyeti 107.779
Kidem tazminati karsiligi 373.811 347.677
Satis iskontolari karsiligi 696.594 -
Senelik izin is¢iligi karsiligi 24.992 -
Garanti giderleri karsiligi 442,007 -
Ertelenmis gelirler 88.402 266.861
Alacak ve bor¢ reeskontu 14.198 128.181
Diger 93.946 24.818
Ertelenen vergi varliklan 19.882.385 15.774.568
Ertelenen vergi varligi - net 16.947.090 12.313.741
Ertelenen vergi varligi, net: 31 Aralik 2008 31 Aralik 2007
1 Ocak (12.313.741)
Cari donem ertelenen vergi geliri (4.633.349) (12.313.741)
(16.947.090) (12.313.741)

31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyle ertelenmis vergi aktifi gelir olarak kaydedilmistir.

Carry forward tax losses 18.148.435 14.899.252
Unrealized finance cost - 107.779
Retirement pay provision 373.811 347.677
Provision for sales discount 696.594 -
Provision for accrued vacation 24.992 -
Provision for warranty expenses 442.007 -
Deferred income 88.402 266.861
Receivable and payable discount 14.198 128.181
Other 93.946 24.818
Deferred tax assets 19.882.385 15.774.568
Deferred tax asset - net 16.947.090 12.313.741
Deferred tax asset, net: 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
1 January (12.313.741) -
Current period deferred tax income (4.633.349) (12.313.741)
(16.947.090) (12.313.741)

Deferred tax asset has been recognized as gain as at 31 December 2008.
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22. VERGI VARLIK VE YUKUMLULUKLERI (devami)

Bagimsiz Bagimsiz
Denetim'den Denetim'den
Gecmis Gecmis

1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007

Vergi karsiligi:

Cari kurumlar vergisi karsiligi -

Ertelenmis vergi faydasi (4.633.349) (12.313.741)

(4.633.349) (12.313.741)

Kurumlar Vergisi

Sirket, Tiirkiye'de gecerli olan kurumlar vergisine tabidir.

Vergiye tabi kurum kazanci iizerinden tahakkuk ettirilecek kurumlar vergisi orani, ticari kazancin tespitinde gider yazilan vergi matrahindan
indirilemeyen giderlerin eklenmesi ve yurticinde yerlesik sirketlerden alinan temettiiler, vergiye tabi olmayan gelirler ve kullanilan yatirm
indirimleri duisiildiikten sonra kalan matrah iizerinden hesaplanmaktadir.

2008 yilinda uygulanan efektif vergi orani %20'dir (2007: %20).

Tiirkiye'de gecici vergi ticer aylik dénemler itibariyla hesaplanmakta ve tahakkuk ettirilmektedir. 2008 yili kurum kazanglarinin gegici vergi
donemleri itibariyla vergilendirilmesi asamasinda kurum kazanglari iizerinden %20 oraninda gegici vergi hesaplanmistir (2007: %20).

Zararlar, gelecek yillarda olusacak vergilendirilebilir kardan diisiilmek iizere, azami 5 yil tasinabilir. Olusan zararlar geriye doniik olarak,
onceki yillarda olusan karlardan diisiilemez.

Tiirkiye'de vergi degerlendirmesiyle ilgili kesin ve kati bir mutabakatlasma prosediirii bulunmamaktadir. Sirketler vergi beyannamelerini,
ilgili yilin hesap kapama donemini takip eden yil 1- 25 Nisan tarihleri arasinda hazirlamaktadir. Vergi Dairesi tarafindan s6z konusu beyannameler
ve bunlara baz teskil eden muhasebe kayitlari 5 yil icerisinde incelenerek degistirilebilmektedir.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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22. TAXASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Tax provision:

Current tax expense -
Deferred tax (benefit) (4.633.349) (12.313.741)
(4.633.349) (12.313.741)

Corporate tax:

The Company is subject to Turkish corporate taxes. Provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for the estimated charge
based on the Company's results for the years and periods.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory accounting profit by adding back non-deductible
expenses, and by deducting dividends received from resident companies, other exempt income and investment incentives utilized.

The effective rate of tax in 2008 is 20% (2007: 20%)

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. The advance corporate income tax rate in 2008 is 20% (2007: 20%).

Losses are allowed to be carried 5 years maximum to be deducted from the taxable profit of the following years. Tax carry back is not allowed.
In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their tax returns between 1-25 April

following the close of the accounting year to which they relate. Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying
accounting records and may revise assessments within five years.

&
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22. VERGI VARLIK VE YUKUMLULUKLERI (devami)

Gelir Vergisi Stopaji:

Kurumlar vergisine ek olarak, dagitilmasi durumunda kar payi elde eden ve bu kar paylarini kurum kazancina dahil ederek beyan eden tam
miikellef kurumlara ve yabanci sirketlerin Tiirkiye'deki subelerine dagitilanlar hari¢ olmak {izere kar paylari iizerinden ayrica gelir vergisi
stopaji hesaplanmasi gerekmektedir. Gelir vergisi stopaji 24 Nisan 2003 tarihinden itibaren tiim sirketlerde %10 olarak ilan edilmistir.

Bu oran, 23 Temmuz 2006 tarihi itibariyla %15 olarak degistirilmistir. Dagitilmayip sermayeye ilave edilen kar paylari gelir vergisi stopajina
tabi degildir. 24 Nisan 2003 tarihinden 6nce alinmis yatirim tesvik belgelerine istinaden yararlanilan yatirim indirimi tutar tizerinden %19,8
vergi tevkifati yapilmasi gerekmektedir. Bu tarihten sonra yapilan tesvik belgesi yatirim harcamalarindan sirketlerin tiretim faaliyetiyle
dogrudan ilgili olanlarin %40'1 vergilendirilebilir kazangtan diisiilebilir. Yararlanilan tesvik belgesiz yatinm harcamalarindan vergi tevkifati
yapilmamaktadir.

Yatirim indirimi uygulamasi 1 Ocak 2006 tarihinden gegerli olmak iizere yiriirliikten kaldirilmistir. Ancak, sirket yetersiz kardan dolayi yatirm
indirimi kullanamazsa, yararlanamadigi yatirim indirimi tutar sonraki yillarda elde edilecek vergilendirilebilir kazanglardan diistilmek tizere
sonraki yillara taginabilir. Bununla birlikte, taginan yatinm indirimini sadece 2006, 2007 ve 2008 yillarina ait kazanglardan indirilebilir.

2008 yili kurum kazancindan indirilemeyen yatirim indirimi tutarinin sonraki dénemlere devri miimkiin degildir.

Sirketlerin 2006, 2007 ve 2008 yillarinin kurumlar vergisi hesabinda, tasinan yatirim indirimini vergilendirilebilir kazanglarindan diisttikleri
takdirde uygulayacaklar kurumlar vergisi orani %30 olacaktir.

Tasinan yatirm indiriminden faydalanilmamasi durumunda ise kurumlar vergisi orani %20 olarak dikkate alinacak ve faydalanilmayan yatirim
indirimi hakki ortadan kalkacaktir.

Sirket ydnetimi yatirim indiriminden faydalanmayi planlamadigindan 31 Aralik 2008 tarihi itibariyla kurumlar vergisi oranini %20 olarak
uygulamistir.

Donem vergi gelirinin, donem zarari (-) ile mutabakati asagidaki gibidir:

1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
Vergi 6ncesi faaliyetlerden elde edilen zarar (-) (48.019.653) (11.262.118)
Gelir vergisi orani %20 %20
- Vergi etkisi: (9.603.931) (2.252.424)
- cari donemde kullanilmayan devreden zarar etkisi
- vergiye tabi olmayan gelirler (112.146) (355.142)
- kanunen kabul edilmeyen giderler 1.163.593 22.056
- diizeltme kayitlarinin vergi etkisi 669.952
- kullanilmayan devreden zarar karsilig 3.249.183 14.899.251
Kar veya zararda muhasebelestirilen gelir vergisi geliri (4.633.349) 12.313.741
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22. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Income withholding tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds surcharge on any dividends distributed,
except for companies receiving dividends who are resident companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign companies. The rate of
income withholding tax is 10% starting from 24 April 2003. This rate was changed to 15% commencing from 23 July 2006. Undistributed
dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding taxes. Withholding tax at the rate of 19,8% is still applied to
investment allowances relating to investment incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. Subsequent to this date, companies can
deduct 40% of the investments within the scope of the investment incentive certificate and that are directly related to production facilities
of the company. The investments without investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.

Investment incentive certificates are revoked commencing from 1 January 2006. If companies cannot use investment incentive due to
inadequate profit, such outstanding investment incentive can be carried forward to following years so as to be deducted from taxable income
of subsequent profitable years. However the companies can deduct the carried forward outstanding allowance from 2006, 2007 and 2008
taxable income. The investment incentive amount that cannot be deducted from 2008 taxable income will not be carried forward to following
years.

The tax rate that the companies can use in the case of deducting the tax investment incentive amount in 2006, 2007 and 2008 is 30%.
If the Company cannot use the investment incentive carried forward, the effective tax rate will be 20% and the unused investment
incentive will be cancelled.

As the management of the Company planned not to use the investment incentives, the Company has used 20% corporate tax rate as of
31 December 2008.

Reconciliation of taxation with the period loss is as follows:

1 Ocak-31 Aralik |1 Ocak-31 Aralik
2008 2007
(Loss) before tax (48.019.653) (11.262.118)
Tax rate 20% 20%
-Tax effects of: (9.603.931) (2.252.424)
- income exempt from tax (112.146) (355.142)
- expenses that are not deductible in determining

taxable profit 1.163.593 22.056

- adjustments 669.952
- provision for unused carried forward loss 3.249.183 14.899.251
Tax income on income statement (4.633.349) 12.313.741

&
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22. VERGI VARLIK VE YUKUMLULUKLERI (devami)

Gelir Vergisi Stopaji: (devami)

Kullanilmamis ge¢mis yil zararlarinin son kullanma tarihleri asagidaki gibidir:

31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
2008 yilinda sona erecek - 4.083.154
2009 yilinda sona erecek (*) - 3.923.923
2010 yilinda sona erecek (*) 16.200.000 32.802.490
2011 yilinda sona erecek 27.812.907 27.812.907
2012 yilinda sona erecek 6.305.153 5.873.782
2013 yilinda sona erecek 40.424.115
90.742.175 74.496.256

(*) Sirket raporlama donemi itibariyla yaptigi projeksiyonlara gore belirtilen yillarda kullanabilecegini diistindtigii enflasyona

gore diizeltilmis vergi hesaplamalari'dir.

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY”) unless otherwise stated.)

22. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Income withholding tax (cont’d)

Unused tax losses will expire as follows:

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007

Expire in 2008 - 4.083.154
Expire in 2009 (¥) - 3.923.923
Expire in 2010 (¥) 16.200.000 32.802.490
Expire in 2011 27.812.907 27.812.907
Expire in 2012 6.305.153 5.873.782
Expire in 2013 40.424.115

90.742.175 74.496.256

(*) Represents the tax calculations which the Company believes to utilize in the mentioned years based on the projections

performed as of the reporting date.

OPERATIONS

Sirket; 31 Aralik 2004 tarihindeki yasal finansal tablolarini 30 Aralik 2003 tarih ve 25332 sayili Resmi Gazete'de yayimlanan
5024 sayili Kanun uyarinca, enflasyon oraninin belirlenen sinirlara ulasmasi durumunda uygulanmasi hiikiimleri cercevesinde
diizenlenmistir. Vergi mevzuatindaki enflasyon muhasebesi ilkeleri UMS 29 “Yiiksek Enflasyonlu Ekonomilerde Finansal
Raporlama” standardindaki hiikiimlere gére diizenlemistir. 31 Aralik 2004 yili itibariyla enflasyon belirli kriterleri astig1 icin 5024
sayili kanuna gore Sirket enflasyon diizeltmesi yapmis olup bu bakiyeler 1 Ocak 2005 tarihi itibariyla yasal kayitlar icin acilis
bakiyesi olarak alinmistir. 2005, 2006, 2007 ve 2008 yilinda Kanun'un belirledigi kriterler gerceklesmedigi icin Sirket'in 2005,
2006, 2007 ve 2008 tarihli yasal mali tablolarina enflasyon muhasebesi uygulanmamistir.

23. HiSSE BASINA KAZANC

31 Aralik 2008 ve 31 Aralik 2007 tarihlerinde sona eren yillar icin Sirket hisselerinin agirlikli ortalamasi ve birim hisse basina
kar hesaplamalari asagidaki gibidir (nakit artislarinin bedelsiz hisse icermedigi varsayilmistir):

The Company prepared its financial statements as at 31 December 2004 in accordance with decision announced by Law No.
5024 published in the Official Gazette No. 25332 on 30 December 2003 that requires the application of inflation accounting in
Turkey in 2004 and future years for tax purposes, if the actual rate of inflation meets certain thresholds, using principles which
do not differ substantially from the principles in IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”. As inflation met
certain thresholds as of 31 December 2004, the Company has adjusted its statutory financial statements as of 31 December
2004 in accordance with Law No. 5024 and inflation adjusted balances as at 31 December 2004 were taken as opening balances
as of 1 January 2005. However, as inflation did not meet the required thresholds as at 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 no further
inflation adjustment made to the Company's statutory financial statements in 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

A summary of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the year ended in 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007 and the basic earnings per share calculation is as follows (assuming that the cash increases did not

31 Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Tedaviildeki hisse senedinin agirlikli ortalama adedi 10.000.000.000 | 8.120.879.121
Net dénem (zarari) (TL) (43.386.304) 1.051.623
Hisse basina (zarar) (TL) (0,004339) 0,00013

involve a bonus element):

31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 10.000.000.000 | 8.120.879.121
Net income / (loss) for the period (TRY) (43.386.304) 1.051.623
Net gain / (loss) per share (TRY) (0,004339) 0,00013
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24, iLiSKILi TARAF ACIKLAMALARI

iliskili taraflarla bakiyeler
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances with related parties

iliskili kuruluslardan ticari alacaklar 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ortaklar

Kiraga Holding A.S. 25.050
Ana ortak tarafindan yonetilen diger sirketler

Karland Otomotiv A.S. 637)
Kirpart Otomotiv A.S.

Toplam - 24.413
iliskili kuruluslardan diger alacaklar 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ana ortak tarafindan yonetilen diger sirketler

Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Tic. A.S. 898.285 331.971
iliskili kuruluslara ticari borglar 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ortaklar

Kiraga Holding A.S. 762.123 364.499
Ana ortak tarafindan yonetilen diger sirketler

Silco SA 13.999.423 2.314.106
Karland Otomotiv A.S. 48.590 77.867
Kirpart Otomotiv A.S. 2.929 62.496
Heksagon Miihendislik A.S. 214.019

Kiraga Dig Ticaret A.S. 10.145 2.907
Toplam 15.037.229 2.821.875
iliskili kuruluslara diger bor¢lar 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ortaklar

Kiraga Holding A.S. (*) 2.015.576

Trade receivables from related parties 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Shareholders

Kiraca Holding A.S. 25.050
Other companies controlled by the shareholders

Karland Otomotiv A.S. (637)
Kirpart Otomotiv A.S.

Total - 24.413
Other receivables from related parties 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Other companies controlled by the shareholders

Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Tic. A.S. 898.285 331.971
Trade payables to related parties 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Shareholders

Kiraca Holding A.S. 762.123 364.499
Other companies controlled by the shareholders

Silco SA 13.999.423 2.314.106
Karland Otomotiv A.S. 48.590 77.867
Kirpart Otomotiv A.S. 2.929 62.496
Heksagon Miihendislik A.S. 214.019

Kiraca Dis Ticaret A.S. 10.145 2.907
Total 15.037.229 2.821.875
Other payables to related parties 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Shareholders

Kiraca Holding A.S. (*) 2.015.576

OPERATIONS
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24. iLISKILi TARAF ACIKLAMALARI (devami)
(*) Sirket, Kiraga Holding'den 2 Ocak 2009 vade ve %26.40 faiz oranli 2.000.000 TL'lik kredi kullanmistir. Bilango tarihi itibari ile tahakkuk eden
faiz tutan 15.576 TL'dir.

Sirket, Kiraga Holding'den bilgi sistemleri, insan kaynaklari, finansman ve diger danismanlik hizmetleri almakta olup ayni zamanda Organize
Sanayi Bolgesi'ndeki fabrika icin Kiraca Holding'e aylik olarak kira 6demektedir.

Sirket, Karland Otomotiv A.S. ile Karsan'in istanbul'daki ofisinin ortak giderlerini paylasmaktadir. S6z konusu giderler giivenlik, dogalgaz, bakim
onarim, temizlik ve ofis binasi ile ilgili diger giderler olup aylik olarak faturalanmaktadir.

Sirket, Kirpart Otomotiv'den J9 araglarinin tiretiminde kullanilmak tizere par¢a temin etmektedir.

Sirket, Peugeot Partner iiretiminde kullanilmak tizere yurt disindan Ekim 2008'e kadar temin ettigi parcalarile Renault Trucks kamyon iiretiminde
kullanilmak iizere yurt disindan temin etmekte oldugu parcalari merkezi Cenevre'de bulunan iliskili sirketi olan Silco S.A. firmasindan almaktadir.

Sirket, Sirena Marine ile Organize Sanayi Bolgesi'ndeki fabrikanin ortak giderlerini paylasmaktadir. S6z konusu giderler personel tasima giderleri,
yemek, dogalgaz, elektrik, telefon ve diger faaliyet giderleri olup vadesi gecen alacaklar icin ilgili donem bor¢lanma orani iizerinden faiz
uygulanmaktadir.

Sirket, Heksagon Miihendislik'ten tiretmis oldugu ve iiretecegi araclarla ilgili ihtiya¢c duydugu konularda miihendislik ve tasarim hizmeti almaktadir.

KARSAN OTOMOTIV SANAYIi VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

(*) The Company utilized a loan amounting to TRY 2.000.000 with a maturity of 2 January 2009 and interest rate of 26,40%. Interest expense

accrued as of the balance sheet date is TRY 15.576.

The Company receives information systems, human resources, financing and other consulting services from Kiraca Holding and also pays monthly

rent for the factory at Industrial Zone.

The Company shares the common expenses of the Isanbul office with Karland Otomotiv A.S. Such expenses include other expenses related to
security, natural gas, repair and maintenance, cleaning and office building and are invoiced monthly.

The Company purchases spare parts from Kirpart Otomotiv to use in the manufacturing of 9 vehicles.

The Company purchases spare parts to use in the production of Renault Trucks and purchased the spare parts to use in the production of Peugeot
Partner until October 2008 from Silco S.A. which is based in Geneva.

The Company shares the common expenses of the factory at Industrial Zone with Sirena Marine. Such expenses consist of personnel transportation
expenses, meal expenses, natural gas, electricity, communication expense and other operational expenses. For overdue receivables, the Company

charges interest from the related period's borrowing rate.

The Company receives engineering and design services for the vehicles which were produced or to be produced by Heksagon Engineering.

. 1 Ocak- 1 Ocak-

Iliskili taraflarla islemler 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007

Satislar

Ortaklar 15.787 41.683

Kiragca Holding A.S.

Ana ortak tarafindan yonetilen diger sirketler

Kirpart Otomotiv A.S. 7.716 6.355

Karland Otomotiv A.S. - 14.503

Toplam 23.503 62.541
1 Ocak- 1 Ocak-

Faiz gelirleri 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007

Ana ortak tarafindan yonetilen diger sirketler

Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Tic. A.S. 97.213

Toplam 97.213 -
1 Ocak- 1 Ocak-

Yurtici Hizmet Aumlan 31 Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007

Ortaklar

Kiraga Holding A.S. 2.156.411 1.843.531

Ana ortak tarafindan yonetilen diger sirketler

Kirpart Otomotiv A.S. 31.766 227.422

Karland Otomotiv A.S. 150.896 173.459

imaA.S. - 6.990

Kiraga Dig Ticaret A.S. 16.019 11.060

Heksagon Miihendislik A.S. 578.356 212.612

Toplam 2.933.448 2.475.074

1 January- 1 January-
Related party transactions 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Sales
Shareholders 15.787 41.683
Kiraca Holding A.S.
Other companies controlled by the shareholders
Kirpart Otomotiv A.S. 7.716 6.355
Karland Otomotiv A.S. - 14.503
Total 23.503 62.541

. 1 January- 1 January-

Interest income 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Other companies controlled by the shareholders
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Tic. A.S. 97.213 -
Total 97.213 -

1 January- 1 January-
Related party transactions 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Domestic purchases
Shareholders
Kiraca Holding A.S. 2.156.411 1.843.531
Other companies controlled by the shareholders
Kirpart Otomotiv A.S. 31.766 227.422
Karland Otomotiv A.S. 150.896 173.459
imaA.S. - 6.990
Kiraga Dis Ticaret A.S. 16.019 11.060
Heksagon Miihendislik A.S. 578.356 212.612
Total 2.933.448 2.475.074

OPERATIONS
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24. iLiSKILi TARAF ACIKLAMALARI (devami)

1 Ocak - 31 Aralik 2008 1 Ocak - 31 Aralik 2007
Ticari mal ve Maddive Ticari mal ve Maddive
Maddi Olmayan Maddi Olmayan
Malzeme Malzeme
Yurtdisi Aimlar Varliklar Varliklar
Silco SA 47.557.121 40.091.768
Toplam 47.557.121 40.091.768
1 Ocak- 1 Ocak-
Faiz giderleri 31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ortaklar
Kiraca Holding A.S. 15.576
Toplam 15.576 -
Ust diizey yoneticilere saglanan faydalar:
Dénem icerisinde st diizey yoneticilere saglanan faydalar asagidaki gibidir:
1 Ocak- 1 Ocak-
31Aralik 2008 | 31 Aralik 2007
Ucretler ve diger kisa vadeli faydalar 2.467.088 1.917.993

Sirket iist diizey yonetim kadrosunu, yonetim kurulu tiyeleri, genel miidiir ve genel midiir yardimcilari olarak belirlemistir.
Ust diizey yoneticilere saglanan faydalar tutari, maas, SGK isveren primi, issizlik isveren primi ile ydnetim kurulu iiyelerine 8denen

huzur hakkinr icermektedir.
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

1 January - 31 December 2008 1 January - 31 December 2007
Property, plant Property, plant
Imports PP intangible assets PP intangible assets
Silco SA 47.557.121 40.091.768
Total 47.557.121 40.091.768
1 January- 1 January-
Interest expense 31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Shareholders
Kiraca Holding A.S. 15.576
Total 15.576
Compensation to key management personnel during the year is as follows:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2008 | 31 December 2007
Wages and other short term benefits 2.467.088 1.917.993

Key management personnel of the Company is determined as the members of board of directors, general manager and assistant
general managers. Compensation to key management personnelincludes salary, Social Security Institution employer premiums,
unemployment employer premiums and attendance fee paid to the members of board of directors.






